






      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting November 17, 2021 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
DECEMBER 1, 2021 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on December 1, 2021 was called-to-order at 5:35 p.m. by 
Mayor Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Mayor Rule, Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, O’Meara were all 
present and Garner. City Attorney Douglas Waterman was also present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation:   

Action Items 
A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the Amended Agenda as posted 
November 30, 2021 at 1:25 p.m. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved 
unanimously. 

 
Information Items: 
 
Action Items:       

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business)  
a. Consider approving minutes for City Council November 17, 2021, regular meeting.  
b. Consider ratifying payroll for November 19, 2021, in the amount of $109,854.41. 
c. Consider approving accounts payable thru November 29, 2021, in the amount of 

$84,671.08. 
 

Mayor Rule called the items. Council President Kiser stated he had gone through the 
accounts payable. There were no concerns.  
 

2. Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 a-c. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously. Consider 
approving Special Events Permit Christmas Parade December 11, 2021 at 2:00 
p.m. (Action Item) 
 

3. Consider a request from Middleton Chamber for a waiver of fees for use of the 
Trolley Station for meetings. (Action Item) 

 
4. Public Hearing: An application by David Buich/ Hartley Lane LLC and James L. 

Escobar, AIA for preliminary plat with respect to the Carter John Mixed-Use 
Subdivision located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel No. R1788901).  The proposed 
preliminary plat consists of 54 townhome sites, 5 common lots and 1 commercial 
lot on 6.06 acres of vacant land zoned Mixed Use (M-U). – Roberta Stewart 
(Action Item) 
 

5. Public Hearing: application by Joe Austin and David Sterling/T-O Engineers for 
annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to 
the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel 
Nos. R37579001 and R37579011).  The proposed preliminary plat consists of 63 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting November 17, 2021 Page 2 
 

residential lots and 10 common lots on 21 acres of vacant land.  Applicants are 
requesting a zone change to R-3. – Roberta Stewart (Action Item) 
 

6. Consider approving the Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law and 
Recommendation for Willow Wood Subdivision. – Roberta Stewart (Action Item) 
 

7. Consider approving Ordinance 655 regarding the annexation and rezone of Willow 
Wood Estates Subdivision property. – Roberta Stewart (Action Item) 
 

8. Consider approving a contract with Lurre Construction in the amount of $19,200.00 
to remove the dirt hill at Piccadilly Park and stockpile for Donna Drain Project. 
(Action Item) 
 

9. Consider approving a proposal from Idaho Power to install a street light near Mill 
Creek Elementary School in an amount not to exceed $8000.00. (Action Item) 
 

10. Consider becoming a local partner of Boise Valley Economic Partnership for an 
amount not to exceed $5000 for membership fee. (Action Item) 
 

 
 
Public Comments, Mayor and Council Comments: 

• Jo Ellen Ringer—113 3rd Street.  Ms. Ringer asked why the trash cans were 
removed by city staff.  She stated that since the removal there has been 
abundance of garbage and debris scattered in her neighborhood.  She stated 
that a private citizen has placed a garbage can in the area and it is often full.    
Ms. Ringer’s second issue was regarding who is responsible for the clean up of 
the Middleton bridge area.  She has cleaned the area with family members 
herself but feels there should be assistance in the clean up by a public agency. 
Third, Ms. Ringer would like to see enforcement of livestock and loose dogs. She 
has been chased by dogs and was told there weren’t city codes to deter this. The 
city staff will look into these issues and see what can be done. 

• Mike Grafffe—1889 Ridge Way. Commented on the logo contest and would like 
to see the year established 1910 added to the logo before it is finalized.  He also 
commented that he appreciates Ms. Ringer’s comments regarding dogs at large 
and would like to see something enforced on it. 

 
 
 
 

 
Adjourn: Mayor Rule adjourned the city council meeting at 6:31 PM. 

 

             
ATTEST:      Steven J. Rule, Mayor  
 
      



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting November 17, 2021 Page 3 
 

Rhonda Carpenter, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: November 17, 2021 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 













EXHIBIT “B” 



















 

EXHIBIT “C” 



Willow Wood Estates Subdivision 
Annexation / Preliminary Plat / Development Agreement Applications 



Project Description:  Residential subdivision with 62 buildable lots and 
10 common lots on 21 acres of vacant land located at 0 Cemetery Road 
(Tax Parcels Nos. R37579011 and R3757901).  The amenities include 
two large common lots with greenspace, tot lot, seating areas, and 
pathways.

Applications: The project includes 3 applications:  (1) 
Annexation/Rezone to R-3, (2) Development Agreement, and (3) 
Preliminary Plat.

Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently 
located in the County but is contiguous to City limits. It is currently
zoned Agricultural.  The property to the east and south is within City 
limits and zoned R-3. The property on the north and west is County 
property and zoned Agricultural. 



City Water

City Sewer

City Services:  City water and sewer are located 
immediately west and south of the project and are 
easily accessible to the project.

Planning Staff finds that City services are nearby and 
available. 



Traffic, Access & Streets:  

Access to the subdivision is via Cemetery Road to Meadow 
Park Street.  Explorer Street from The Crossings at 
Meadow Parks is a second access from the East. 

As required by City Code, Developer will improve, at its own 
cost, the ½ road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow 
Park Street. Although Developer at one time owned the 
property fronting Meadow Park, it does not currently own 
that frontage property.  However, Developer recognizes the 
need for the City to build critical east/west roads, so it has 
entered into an agreement with the current owner of the 
property to build those frontage improvements and dedicate 
the same to the City.  Planning Staff recommends that City 
Council make a condition of approval the requirement that 
Meadow Park frontage improvement and dedication to the 
City must occur before final plat for Phase 1 is approved. 

Additionally, applicant is requesting a waiver to complete 
the portions of Cemetery Road fronting Phase 2 along with 
Phase 2 improvements.  Planning Staff recommends this 
waiver due to difficulty with sewer improvements in Phase 
2.

Applicant completed a Traffic Study which is currently being updated. It 
will show percentage of impacts this subdivision will have on 
surrounding intersections, and Developer will be required to pay for 
those impacts via a proportionate share traffic fee that must be paid 
prior to final plat approval for phase 1. Again, this requirement will be set 
forth in the proposed Development Agreement. 



Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: 
Developer has provided 5% open space in 
compliance with the code by providing large 
common lots containing pathways, seating 
areas, and a tot lot. 

Middleton Rural Fire District:  Like many 
agencies, the Middleton Rural Fire District 
has a long queue of Middleton, County and 
Star subdivision projects to review.  As a 
result, Deputy Chief Islas has not had an 
opportunity to submit comments on this 
preliminary plat yet. City Council can still 
approve the preliminary plat, but it is critical 
that compliance with Middleton Fire District 
comments be made a condition of approval.  
Once that is done, then City Engineer will 
work with Developer and the Fire District to 
make sure the Construction documents for 
the subdivision infrastructure include all Fire 
District requirements.



Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 21 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton and rezoned 
to R-3 zoning, which permits three single family homes per gross acre. 

There are three requirements for annexation approval: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be 
extended to serve the site, (3) the annexation is in the best interest of the City and not adverse to the public health and welfare. 

As to a rezone request, the Council must make two findings before approving such a request: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the 
City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan. 

FINDINGS:

Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation requirements.  (1) The property is contiguous; (2) sewer and 
water are available as shown above, and (3) the City will benefit from the housing provided and street improvements that are made, and 
the project will not adversely affect the public health and welfare because City services can be provided efficiently and economically. 

As to rezone, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver services. And, as will be shown in 
more detail below, Planning Staff finds that the rezone is in harmony with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 



Preliminary Plat: The preliminary plat shows two phases for 
development, and it complies with all Middleton codes and 
standards. The only exception from code is applicant’s 
request to lower the code required turning radius of 125’ to 
90’. Both City Engineer and the Middleton Rural Fire 
Department have agreed that the 90’ radius is an adequate 
and permissible turning radius.  Waivers to code are allowed 
as a condition to preliminary plat approval per MCC 1-15-2.

Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with 
dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton 
City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State 
Code except for the two waivers noted earlier.

Planning Staff further finds that the preliminary plat is not 
materially detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare as noted earlier. Additionally, the preliminary plat is 
in harmony with the Middleton Comprehensive Plan as will 
be shown in more detail below.



Development Agreement:  Annexation and rezone requests generally require a Development Agreement (“DA”).  Applicant and City 
Staff have used the City’s form for the DA, and have merely added six new provisions. A copy of the proposed DA is attached to the 
Staff Report and it was also uploaded to the website for public viewing when legal notice was given. The six provisions are:

1. A concept plan shall be attached to the Development Agreement, and Developer shall construct the project “substantially 
consistent” with the concept plan. 

2. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 50’ half-road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and 
dedicate the same to the City.

3. Developer shall pay additional pro-rata or proportionate share fees for all traffic impacts and intersection controls affected 
by the subdivision.

4. All construction shall be in compliance with R-3 zoning except for the two waivers noted earlier.
5. If Developer does not bring phase 1 to final plat within 2 years of preliminary plat approval (or 3 years with a 1 year 

extension request), then the Developer will be in breach of contract, and City will have the option of terminating the 
Development Agreement. The preliminary plat will also become null and void, and the property will remain R-3 zoning.

6. After final plat approval for Phase 1, Developer will need to obtain final plat approval for phase 2 within the following two 
years (or three years if a one-year extension is requested). 



Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map because 
the project parcel is designated “Residential” on the FLUM, which matches the residential use planned for the site.

Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:

a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks 
shown on the preliminary plat. 

b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for 
the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, quality lots for residential use increase the quality of 
life and general welfare of the City.

c. Goals 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located. 



Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.

Comments from Agencies: Comments from Black Canyon Irrigation District were received on November 2nd and 9th.  Black Canyon 
merely reminded applicant of piping requirements. COMPASS submitted a comment letter on November 5th. The Comment letter set 
forth standard informational items regarding public transportation options and pathways.  CHD4 submitted comments on November 8th

regarding dimensions for road repairs and utilities. It also noted an offset of the centerline that needs to be anticipated by the engineers. 

Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Were provided as Exhibit “D” to the Staff Report.

Applicant Information:  The applications were accepted on March 16, 2021.  The applicants are Joseph Austin (Owner) and Dave 
Sterling of T-O Engineering. 2471 S. Titanium, Meridian 83642.

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting: Dates:

▪ Newspaper Notification 11/14/2021
▪ Radius notification mailed to Adjacent landowners within 300’ 11/12/2021
▪ Circulation to Agencies 11/10/2021
▪ Sign Posting property 11/12/2021
▪ Neighborhood Meeting 02/17/2021

Planning Staff finds that Notice was given in compliance with Idaho State law and the Middleton City Code.

Applicable Codes & Standards: Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, an Idaho Code Secs., 
67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-1329, and 50-222.



Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:

The City Council is considering three aplications for (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. Per State 
law and the Middleton City Code, the decision to approve  or deny the applications must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of 
law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts in the Staff Report and also in this presentation.  If the Council agrees 
with those findings of facts and agrees with any of the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Council need merely pass 
a motion to accept those findings of facts. 

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the 
applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the 
Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making a decision on the applications. If the Council finds that tonight’s public 
hearing was held and conducted in compliance with Idaho State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the Council may accept these 
conclusions of law by passing a motion to accept the conclusions of law set forth in the staff report and at the public hearing.



If the Council is inclined to approve the three applications based upon the above 
Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any 
approval be subject to the following conditions: 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services 
are to be extended to serve the subdivision.

2. Owner/Developer shall construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to 
Meadow Park Street and Cemetery Road and dedicate the same to the City of 
Middleton. All Meadow Park improvements and Cemetery Road improvements 
adjacent to Phase 1 must be completed prior to final plat approval for Phase 1.  
The frontage improvements of Cemetery Road adjacent to Phase 2 may be 
constructed at the time of Phase 2 improvements. Those improvements must be 
completed and dedicated to the City  before final plat approval for Phase 2. 

3. Owner/Developer to update the Traffic Impact Study and pay all City required 
proportionate share traffic fees prior to final plat approval for Phase 1.

4. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
5. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and 

approved.
6. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the 

construction drawings for the project.
7. A tot lot located on Lot 1C, Block 3 to include seating area/benches.

Finally, if the Council denies the applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-
14(E)(8), the Council must state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to 
gain approval of the application(s).



EXHIBIT “D” 



 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                           Middleton City Council 
 
 

 

 

 
Willow Wood Estates Subdivision 

Snapshot Summary 
  

             
 

                                

A. City Council Hearing Date: December 1, 2021   

B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 62 buildable lots and 10 common 
lots on 21 acres of vacant land located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcels Nos. 
R37579011 and R3757901).  Amenities include two large common lots with 
greenspace, tot lot, seating areas, and pathways. 

C. Application Requests: Applicant has three applications: (1) annexation and rezone 
to R-3 zoning, (2) preliminary plat, and (3) Development Agreement.  
 

D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently located in the 
County and zoned Agricultural.  The property to the east and south is within City limits 



             
        

2 
 

and zoned R-3. The property on the north and west is County property and zoned 
Agricultural.  

 
E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately west and south of the 

project and easily accessible to the project. 

                 
 

F. Traffic, Access & Streets:   
 
Access to the subdivision is via Meadow Park Street and Explorer Street that connects 
to The Crossing at Meadow Parks.  
 
As required by City Code, Developer will improve, at its own cost, the ½ road portions 
of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street. Although Developer at one time owned 
the property fronting Meadow Park, it does not currently own that frontage property.  
However, Developer recognizes the need for the City to build critical east/west roads, 
so it has entered into an agreement with the current owner of the property to build 
those frontage improvements and dedicate the same to the City.  Planning Staff 
recommends that City Council make a condition of approval the requirement that 
Meadow Park frontage improvement and dedication to the City must occur before final 
plat for Phase 1 is approved.  

                               



             
        

3 
 

Applicant completed a Traffic Study which is currently being updated. It will show 
percentage of impacts this subdivision will have on surrounding intersections, and 
Developer will be required to pay for those impacts via a proportionate share traffic fee 
that must be paid prior to final plat approval for phase 1. This requirement will be set 
forth in the proposed Development Agreement.  
 

G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space:  Developer has provided 5% open space in 
compliance with the code by providing large common lots containing pathways, 
seating areas, and a tot lot.   
 

H. Storm drain and Pressurized Irrigation: Storm drain facilities and pressurized 
irrigation have been provided and are approved by the City Engineer. 
 

I. Middleton Rural Fire District:  The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire 
District. The Fire District is backed up with review of Middleton, Canyon County and 
Star preliminary plats and has not had a chance to issue comments on this application. 
 
City Council can still approve the preliminary plat, but it is critical that compliance with 
Middleton Fire District comments be made a condition of approval.  Once that is done, 
then City Engineer will work with Developer and the Fire District to make sure the 
Construction documents for the subdivision infrastructure include all Fire District 
requirements. 
 

J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 21 acre project parcel 
be annexed into the City of Middleton and zoned R-3, which permits three single family 
homes per gross acre.   
 
There are three requirements for annexation approval: (1) the property must be 
contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, 
(3) the annexation is in the best interest of the City and not adverse to the public 
health and welfare.  
 
As to a zone change request, the Council must make two findings before approving 
such a request: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services 
and (2) the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation 
requirements.  (1) The property is contiguous; (2) sewer and water are available as 
shown above, and (3) the City will benefit from the housing provided and street 
improvements that are made, and the project will not adversely affect the public health 
and welfare because City services can be provided efficiently and economically.  
 



             
        

4 
 

As to the zone change, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the 
City’s ability to deliver services. And, as will be shown in more detail in section M 
below, Planning Staff finds that the rezone is in harmony with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 

K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows two phases for 
development, and it complies with all Middleton codes and standards. The only 
exception from code is applicant’s request to lower the code required turning radius of 
125’ to 90’. City Staff is in the process of changing the Code to allow 90’ turning 
radius. It will be heard by P&Z on December 6th.  

 

    
             
                [A copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.] 
                  
Findings: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and 
requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho 
State Code except for the waiver noted above.   
 



             
        

5 
 

Planning Staff further finds that the preliminary plat is not materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety and welfare as noted directly above in the section on 
Annexation/Rezone. Additionally, the preliminary plat is in harmony with the Middleton 
Comprehensive Plan as will be shown in more detail in Section M below. 
 

L. Development Agreement:  Annexation and rezone requests generally require a 
Development Agreement (“DA”).  Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for 
the DA, and have merely added six new provisions: 
 

a. A concept plan shall be attached to the Development Agreement, and 
Developer shall construct the project “substantially consistent” with the concept 
plan.  

b. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 50’ half-road portions of Cemetery 
Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City prior to 
approval of final plat for phase 1. 

c. Developer shall pay additional pro-rata or proportionate share fees for all traffic 
impacts and intersection controls affected by the subdivision prior to final plat 
approval for phase 1. 

d. All construction shall be in compliance with R-3 zoning. 
e. If Developer does not bring phase 1 to final plat within 2 years of preliminary 

plat approval (or 3 years with a 1 year extension request), then the Developer 
will be in breach of contract, and City will have the option of terminating the 
Development Agreement. The preliminary plat will also become null and void, 
and the property will remain R-3 zoning. 

f. After final plat approval for Phase 1, Developer will obtain final plat approval for 
each successive phase within 2 years (or 3 years with a 1 year extension) of 
the final plat approval for the previous phase.  
 

A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”. 
 

M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated 
“Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the 
site. 
 
Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of 
the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 
 

a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in 
light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.  

b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that 
pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives 
when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, quality lots for residential use 
increase the quality of life and general welfare of the City. 

c. Goals 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the 
project is located.  



             
        

6 
 

N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None. 
 
O. Comments from Agencies: Comments from Black Canyon Irrigation District were 

received on November 2, 2021 and November 19, 2021.  Black Canyon merely 
reminded applicant of piping requirements. Comments from COMPASS were received 
on November 5th. The agency noted informational items, including viability of public 
transportation for the site. On November 8th, CHD4 submitted comments concerning 
moratorium on cuts to newly rebuilt roads, portion of road that needs rebuilt, and 
notice that the section line was offset 2 ½ feet.  Agency comments are attached as 
Exhibit “C”. 
 

P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:  
 

Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “D”. 
 

Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on March 16, 2021. Applicants are 
Joseph Austin (Owner) and David Sterling/T-O Engineering. 2471 S. Titanium, 
Meridian ID 83642.  (208) 323-2288. 

 
R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 

      

Newspaper Notification     11/14/2021 
 

 Radius notification mailed to 
 Adjacent landowners within 300’    11/12/2021  

 
 Circulation to Agencies     11/10/2021  
 
 Sign Posting property     11/12/2021 

 
Neighborhood Meeting     02/17/2021 
 

S. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-
3, and 5-4, an Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-1329, 
and 50-222. 
 

T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
City Council is considering three applications for (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) 
Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. Per State law and the Middleton 
City Code, any decision and order must be based upon findings of facts and 
conclusions of law.   
 



             
        

7 
 

As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and agrees with any of 
the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Council should make 
a motion to accept those findings of facts.  
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to 
hear these applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice 
requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State 
Code and Middleton Code to be considered in making a decision on the applications.   
If the December 1st public hearing is held and conducted in compliance with Idaho 
State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the Council may accept these 
conclusions of law by passing a motion to accept the conclusions of law set forth in the 
staff report and at the public hearing.   
 
If the Council is inclined to approve the three applications based upon the above 
Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any 
approval be subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer 
services are to be extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. Owner/Developer shall construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to 
Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City of 
Middleton prior to approval of final plat for phase 1. 

3. Owner/Developer to update their initial Traffic Impact Study and pay all City 
required proportionate share traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 1. 

4. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved. 
5. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and 

approved. 
6. Tot Lot located on Lot 1C, Block 3 to include seating area/benches. 
7. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the 

construction drawings for the project. 

Finally, if the Commission recommends denial of the preliminary plat application, then 
pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Commission must state on the record 
what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s). 

 
 

Prepared by Middleton Planner, Roberta Stewart    Dated: 11/24/2021 

 



 

1 
 

              
 

  

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Preliminary Plat under review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP 111'

111'

111'

115'

111'

10
7'

10
7'

10
7'

10
7'

10
8'13

4'

75
'

107'

107'

107'

107'

114'

114'

37'

107'

10
0'

80' 80' 80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

85' 80' 80' 80' 80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
7'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

97
'

111'

111'

111'

75
'

20
'

57'

26
'

11
3'

12
7'

117'

6C

3

11

4

10

5

987

1 2

198'

129'80'80'80'80'65'

80
'

80
'

65' 80' 80' 80' 80' 12'

10
0'

80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

114'

10
7'

12
7'

11
3'

432

126'

66'80'80'80'25'

20'

185'

10
0'

80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

621

35
'

27'80'80'80'80'80'80'28'

35
'

87
'

65' 80' 75' 75' 75' 75' 75' 60'

57'

97
'

8,414 SF 8,000 SF

8,000 SF8,000 SF8,000 SF

8,025 SF8,560 SF9,009 SF

18,725 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF8,000 SF8,414 SF
12

4'

102'

19'

91
'

31
'

45'

23
'

107'

107'

3 1' 68' 75'

2 5 '

54'

87
'

75'

IR

2C

15
8,568 SF

23'

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

2

3

4

5

9,297 SF

8,325 SF

9,050 SF

13,031 SF

103'

75'

75'

75'

111'

75'

111'

83'

85'

65'

31
'

91'

75'

92'

50'
20'

75'

43
'

3 2 ' 155'

133'

19,816 SF

75'75'75'88'

44'

87'75'75'75'20'114'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

10
1'

44
'

81'

8 2
'

31'

3 1

' 19'

3 1

'

102'

146'

87'

47
'

298'458'

1C

1C

83'

85'

75'

67'

3

7

8

10

19 20

1C

4 9,330 SF

8,024 SF

8,023 SF

8,024 SF

9,333 SF

8,025 SF 9,277 SF

102'

20
'

55 '

20'

56 418
8,025 SF9,277 SF 8,025 SF

25,532 SF

8,028 SF

102'

87
'

31'67'63'
75'

25'

68
'

3'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

29
'

27'

14

5

13

84

17

3 7

1510 12

85'

87
'

72' 75'75'75'75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

77'

92'

48'

8,000 SF

8,025 SF

8,000 SF

8,188 SF8,025 SF

8,308 SF

8,025 SF 8,025 SF

8,000 SF8,393 SF 8,000 SF

48
'

1C

31'

68'

24'

20'

16
'

385'

6

5C

14

13

16C
17

12

11

9

3

R/
WR/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R/W

R/WR/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W
R/W

R
/W

R/WR/W

9C

9,297 SF

8,173 SF

8,568 SF

8,530 SF

9,045 SF

8,025 SF

8,024 SF

8,023 SF

8,241 SF

11 16

80'93'

8,000 SF

12'
75'

10'

15'

8,000 SF

R/W

R/W

R/WR/W

2

6

43

1C

9

8

7

2

5
9,361 SF

8,325 SF

10,925 SF
10,084 SF

9,127 SF

8,325 SF

8,325 SF

9,127 SF

8,325 SF

91
'

31'
63'

11
1'

12'
9' 38'

72
'

55'

7'

2'

73'

75'

63'

75'

63'

31'

91'

20'

30
'

BM#1

BM#3

N
00

°2
1'

18
"E

 8
71

.9
0'

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

24.00'

75.00'

75.00'

R90'

R90
'

R90' R90
'

R
100'

R26.00'

R25.50'

50' ROW

24.00' LANDSCAPING
BUFFER EASEMENT

24' LANDSCAPING
BUFFER EASEMENT

SEE NOTE 8

24.00'

SEE NOTE 8

EXPLORER ST

LONE OAK ST.

R
ED

BU
D

 A
VE

ACADIA ST

IVORY LILAC ST

RAVENWOOD ST.

TIM
BERWOOD ST.

SUGAR MAPLE AVE.

SU
M

AC
 A

VE
.

C
R

YSTAL R
IVER

 AVE.

20.00' IRRIGATION
DITCH EASEMENT

20.00' IRRIGATION
DITCH EASEMENT

BM#2

76.03'
76.00'

R25.50'

R25.50'

S35°57'26"E 945.76'

C4

S89°52'37"E 148.56'

S00°39'17"W 52.74'

N89°52'37"W 184.40'

S39
°5

9'0
2"

W
 28

8.1
8'

N89°52'14"W 922.81'

N72°41'19"E 606.24'

2.0'2.0'5.0' 17.5' 17.5' 5.0' 0.5'0.5'

25.0'25.0'

50.0'

CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH
MICRO FIBER MESH, 5" THICK,

 ITEM 706.4.1.E.1

STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

15" OF STRUCTURAL SUBBASE,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1

6.0'

50.0'

11.0' 6.0'

8.0'
SIDEWALK25.0' 8.0' 9.0'

24.0' TRAFFIC BUFFER EASEMENT

21" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

9" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

4" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
2" PLANT MIX PAVEMENT
 ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

STANDARD 6" VERTICAL
CURB AND GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.5

REPLACE ASPHALT TO
ROAD CENTERLINE

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C4

RADIUS

25.65'

LENGTH

16.38'

DELTA

36°35'56"

BEARING

S17°45'14"E

CHORD

16.11'

0 8040 240160

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR
WILLOW WOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISION

A PORTION OF LOT 2 OF SECTION 31
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN

CANYON  COUNTY, IDAHO
2021

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 F
O

R
:

LO
T 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S

C0.00

SHEET INDEX
C0.00 LOT DIMENSIONS

C0.01 UTILITY PLAN

SURVEY INFORMATION
T-O ENGINEERS- LADD CLUFF, PLS PHONE NO. (208)-323-2288

ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88).

NORTHING: 753532.776 NORTHING: 752653.132 NORTHING: 752871.528

EASTING: 2391692.969 EASTING: 2391687.504 EASTING: 2392954.832

ELEVATION: 2473.34 ELEVATION: 2461.92 ELEVATION: 2465.91

DESCRIPTION: 5/8" REBAR WITH
ILLEGIBLE CAP DESCRIPTION:

5/8" REBAR "CLS 7732"
DESCRIPTION:

5/8" REBAR "PLS 9366"

BM#1 BM#2 BM#3

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

22
"x

34
"

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

, S
UR

VE
YO

RS
 &

 P
LA

NN
ER

S

C
  2

02
1 T

-O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

  A
N

Y 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, R

EU
SE

 O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
 IT

S 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

IS
 S

TR

D
ES

IG
N

ED

D
R

AW
N

C
H

EC
KE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BO
R

D
ER

 S
IZ

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.T

O
-E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

C
O

M

H
:\2

10
03

6\
3_

AC
AD

D
W

G
\S

H
EE

TS
\P

R
EP

LA
T\

21
00

36
 -C

-P
P.

D
W

G
, 1

1/
23

/2
02

1

24
71

 S
. T

IT
AN

IU
M

 P
LA

C
E

M
ER

ID
IA

N
, I

D
AH

O
 8

36
42

PH
O

N
E:

 (2
08

) 3
23

-2
28

8

10 1/2
ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE
1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

BO
IS

E 
♦ 

C
O

D
Y 

♦ 
C

O
EU

R
 D

'A
LE

N
E 

♦ 
H

EB
ER

 C
IT

Y
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 ♦
 N

AM
PA

 ♦
 S

PO
KA

N
E

11/23/2021

P.
 L

U
C

IA

P.
 L

U
C

IA

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

210036

W
IL

LO
W

 W
O

O
D

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AREA AND LOT SUMMARY

TOTAL AREA ±904,260 SF 20.8 ACRES

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL AREA ±525,627 SF 12.1 ACRES

TOTAL COMMON/OPEN SPACE AREA ±132,208 SF 3.0 ACRES

INTERIOR COMMON/OPEN SPACE AREA ±48,371 1.1 ACRES

RIGHT OF WAY AREA ±198,054 SF 4.5 ACRES

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 72

TOTAL NUMBER OF BUILDABLE LOTS 62

TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMON LOTS 10

PROPOSED DENSITY 2.99
UNITS/ACRE

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOT SIZE ±8,478 SF 0.19 ACRES

MINIMUM LOT SIZE 8000 SF 0.18 ACRES

PERCENTAGE TOTAL OPEN SPACE 14.62%

PERCENTAGE INTERIOR OPEN SPACE 5.35%

SITE DATA
OWNER/DEVELOPER
JOE AUSTIN
1746 WINDMILL SPRING CT.
MIDDLETON, ID 83644
PH: (208) 890-9955

ENGINEER
DAVID N. STERLING, P.E.
PAUL LUCIA III E.I.
T-O ENGINEERS, INC.
2471 S. TITANIUM
MERIDIAN, ID 83642
PH: (208) 323-2288

SURVEYOR
LADD CLUFF, P.L.S.
T-O ENGINEERS, INC.
2471 S. TITANIUM
MERIDIAN, ID 83642
PH: (208) 323-2288

ZONING AND SETBACK
ZONE - R-3
CITY SETBACKS
   FRONT = 25'
   REAR =  20'
   SIDE =   10'
   STREET SIDE = 20'

FIRE DISTRICT
CITY OF MIDDLETON

SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT
CITY OF MIDDLETON

IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PRIVATE

(PRESSURE IRRIGATION)

BLACK CANYON IRRIGATION DISTRICT

ROADWAY JURISDICTION
CITY OF MIDDLETON

SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLETON SCHOOL
DISTRICT #134

R/W

LEGEND

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EASEMENT

ROAD CENTERLINE

RESIDENTIAL LOT NUMBER

COMMON LOT NUMBER

BLOCK NUMBER

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP

FOUND 5/8 REBAR

CALCULATED POINT

1

1C
1

NOTES

1. BUILDING SETBACK AND DIMENSION STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT
ISSUANCE.

2. COMMON LOTS TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE WILLOW WOOD ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION.

3. STORM DRAINAGE WILL BE ROUTED TO INFILTRATION FACILITIES LOCATED IN COMMON AREAS. STORM DRAINAGE WILL BE DESIGNED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CATALOG OF STORM WATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR IDAHO CITIES AND COUNTIES AND THE CITY OF
MIDDLETON.

4. INDIVIDUAL PRESSURE IRRIGATION SERVICES WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE REAR OF EACH LOT. PRESSURE IRRIGATION WILL BE CONNECTED TO A
NEW PUMP STATION LOCATED IN COMMON LOT 1 BLOCK 2. THE SYSTEM WILL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. LOT OWNERS WILL BE
OBLIGATED TO PAY LEVIES AND ASSESSMENTS FROM THE APPLICABLE IRRIGATION DISTRICT.

5. IRRIGATION DITCHES THROUGH THE PROJECT SHALL BE PIPED WHERE THEY CROSS ROADWAYS WITH ALL STRUCTURES LOCATED BEYOND ANY
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. ALL IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

6. DIRECT LOT ACCESS TO CEMETERY ROAD IS PROHIBITED.

7. BLOCK 1, LOT 1, BLOCK 2 , LOT 1, BLOCK 3, LOT 1, BLOCK 4, LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 5, LOT 9,  BLOCK 6 LOT 6, BLOCK 7 LOT 1 ARE COMMON LOTS

8. BLOCK 1, LOTS 5 AND 16 ARE PRIVATE DRIVES AND BOTH CONTAIN A BLANKET PUBLIC ACCESS  AND UTILITY EASEMENT

9. ALL STREETS PROPOSED IN THIS SUBDIVISION ARE PUBLIC STREETS AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MIDDLETON STANDARDS
FOR PUBLIC STREETS.

10. DOMESTIC AND FIRE PROTECTION WATER ALONG WITH SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF MIDDLETON.

11. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RE-SUBDIVISION.

12. ALL EXISTING WELLS SHALL BE ABANDONED PER IDWR REGULATIONS. ALL SEPTIC SYSTEMS SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED AND THE AREA
RECOMPACTED PER THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

13. SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY SHALL BE RESERVED WHEN CITY APPROVES THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS.

14. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILTIES AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS OVER THE 10' ADJACENT
TO ANY PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF HARD SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS TO
EACH LOT.

15. ALL LOTS CONTAIN A 10 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT ADJACENT TO ANY REAR LOT LINE OR SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES & IRRIGATION

16. ALL INTERIOR LOTS CONTAIN A 5' WIDE EASEMENT, EACH SIDE, FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES, DRAINAGE AND IRRIGATION FACILITIES.

17. PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION WATER WILL BE PROVIDED TO EACH LOT FROM THE BLACK CANYON IRRIGATION DISTRICT. IN COMPLIANCE WITH IDAHO
CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(B), LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ENTITLED TO IRRIGATION WATER RIGHTS AND WILL BE OBLIGATED FOR LEVIES
AND ASSESSMENTS FROM SAID DISTRICTS AND COMPANIES.

CITY OF MIDDLETON
LOCAL ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

PROJECT SITE

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

WILLIS ROAD

PURPLE SAGE RD

NOTE:  P.L.S. SIGNATURE OF THIS DOCUMENT ONLY CERTIFIES THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY BOUNDARY SHOWN HEREON.

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1"=1000'

7

CAROL ANNA HEYDT
R3757900000

24712 CEMETERY RD

AG, COUNTY

JACK AND PEGGY LIVING TRUST R3758001100
11811 PURPLE SAGE RD

ZONE R-3

JOSEPH SWEENEY IV
R37579011A0

24556 CEMETERY RD

ESTATES 81 LLC
R3757700000

0 CEMETERY RD
APPROVED PRE PLAT FOR

ESTATES AT WEST HIGHLANDS No.1
ZONE R-3

DAN G WALRATH
R3820800000

24617 CEMETERY RD
AG, COUNTY

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

1C
11,818 SF

1C
7,900 SF

16C
3,174 SF

1C
32,392 SF

DARIN CHRISTIAN SORENSON
R3758118100

291 EXPLORER ST
ZONE R-3

DAVID BOHN
R3758121400

296 EXPLORER ST

ZONE R-3

BRANDON DAVID
R3758121300

299 TRAILBLAZER ST

ZONE R-3

VASILIY KARAZHOV
R3758121200

292 TRAILBLAZER ST

ZONE R-3

PROVIDENCE
PROPERTIES LLC

R3758118900
APPROVED PREPLAT FOR

THE CROSSING AT MEADOW PARK
SUBDIVISION No.1

ZONE R-3

1C
11,818 SF

CITY OF MIDDLETON
CEMETERY ROAD WIDENING TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

1

2

3

4

5

6

PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD

PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD

CL PL

BLACK POWDER LLC
R3820701100

0 CEMETERY RD

RW

P.O.B.

W. MEADOW CREEK WAY

21'21
' 5' 5'

IRRIGATION
PUMP STATION

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

TOT LOT

2C
7,388 SF



S

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

EG
EGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEG

EGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEG

50'

50'

24'24'

50'

50'

IR

IR
EXISTING IRRIGATION PIPE

IRRIGATION DITCH

EXISTING HEADWALL

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

R/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W R/W

R
/W

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/
W R/W R/W R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R/W R/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/W

R
/W

R/W

R/
W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W R/W

R
/W

R/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

2470

2471

2472

2473

2467

2466

24
65

24
64

2463

2462

2461

24602460

2461

2463

2462

2464

24
65

24
66

24
67

24
68

24
69

24
70

24
71

24
72

4

4

S

8''W 8''W 8''W
8''S 8''S

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8'
'W

8''S 8''S 8''S 8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8'
'S

8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W
8''S 8''S 8''S 8''S

8''W

8''S

S

S S

S

S

S

S

S S

S

S

ID

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI
PI

PI
PI

PI

PI
PI

PIPIPIPIPI

PIPIPIPIPIPI

PI

PI

PI PI

PI PI PI

8'
'S

8'
'S

8'
'S

8'
'S

8''S S

PI

PI

IR

IR

IR
IR

IR
IR

IR
IR

IR

S

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

H 
Y D

H Y D

H 
Y D

W

W

8''W 8''W

8''W 8''W 8''W

8'
'W

S

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

Y
D

H

Y
D

H

Y
D

H

SD

SD

SD

SD

S 8''S S

S

S

S

S

Y D

H

8''S

S
W

S

S

S

YDH

Y
D

H

3
4

5

6

8

3

2

3

4

5

2C

345619181715

13

12

11

10

9

7

4 3
2

2

2 3 4

1 2 3 5

7 8 9 10 11 6C

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

9C

1C

1C

4

1C

STORM DRAINAGE
SWALE #1

14

8

EXPLORER ST

LONE OAK ST.

R
ED

BU
D

 A
VE

ACADIA ST

IVORY LILAC ST

RAVENWOOD ST.

TIM
BERWOOD ST.

SUGAR MAPLE AVE.

SU
M

AC
 A

VE
.

C
R

YSTAL R
IVER

 AVE.

W. MEADOW CREEK WAY

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

12.00'

14.0'

14.0'

25.5'

25.0'

6.00'

12.0'

12.0'

10.0'

12.0'

7

TP-4

TP-2

TP-3

TP-5

TP-9
TP-1

TP-8

TP-7

TP-6

5C

20

SEWER CLEAN OUT
FOR FUTURE CONNECTION

20.00'

12.00'

6

9

CONNECT TO EXISTING
SEWER INVERT

11.03'

50.0'

23.0'

8.0'
SIDEWALK25.0' 8.0' 9.0'

24.0' TRAFFIC BUFFER EASEMENT

15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
2" PLANT MIX PAVEMENT
 ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

STANDARD 6" VERTICAL
CURB AND GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.5

0 6030 180120

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 F
O

R
:

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C0.01

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R/W

SEW

W

SD

PI

IR

S

SD

LEGEND

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED EASEMENT

PROPOSED SEWER LINE

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN LINE

PROPOSED PRESSURE IRRIGATION LINE

PROPOSED GRAVITY IRRIGATION LINE

EX. FENCE LINE

PROPOSED SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

PROPOSED CATCH BASIN/AREA INLET

PROPOSED SAND AND GREASE TRAP

EXISTING POWER POLE

EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER

EXISTING WATER MAIN

EXISTING WATER VALVE

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT

EXISTING STREET SIGN

EXISTING SEWER MAIN

EXISTING EDGE OF GRAVEL

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

TEST PIT

STORM WATER FLOW ARROW

SEW

NOTES
1. ALL WATER MAINLINES ARE TO BE 8" IN DIAMETER

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL SEWER LINES ARE TO BE BE 8" IN DIAMETER
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. ALL STORM WATER DRAINAGE LINES ARE TO BE 12"
IN DIAMETER

4. PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION TO BE PROVIDED BY A
PROPOSED PUMP STATION LOCATED IN LOT 2
BLOCK 3.

5. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BY T-O
ENGINEERS (JANUARY 2021).

6. A BLANK CONDUIT SHALL BE ADDED TO JOINT
TRENCH FOR CITY REQUIRED FIBER OPTICS.

2578

2580

YDH

X X X

KEYNOTES:

CONNECT TO EXISTING SEWER FROM ESTATES
AT MEADOWPARK

CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER FROM ESTATES
AT MEADOWPARK

PROVIDE WATER/SEWER MAIN STUBS FOR
FUTURE EXTENSION

MAILBOX CLUSTER

1

2

3

22
"x

34
"

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

, S
UR

VE
YO

RS
 &

 P
LA

NN
ER

S

C
  2

02
1 T

-O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

  A
N

Y 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, R

EU
SE

 O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
 IT

S 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

IS
 S

TR

D
ES

IG
N

ED

D
R

AW
N

C
H

EC
KE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BO
R

D
ER

 S
IZ

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.T

O
-E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

C
O

M

H
:\2

10
03

6\
3_

AC
AD

D
W

G
\S

H
EE

TS
\P

R
EP

LA
T\

21
00

36
 -C

-P
P-

01
-U

TI
LI

TI
ES

.D
W

G
, 1

1/
23

/2
02

1

24
71

 S
. T

IT
AN

IU
M

 P
LA

C
E

M
ER

ID
IA

N
, I

D
AH

O
 8

36
42

PH
O

N
E:

 (2
08

) 3
23

-2
28

8

10 1/2
ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE
1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

BO
IS

E 
♦ 

C
O

D
Y 

♦ 
C

O
EU

R
 D

'A
LE

N
E 

♦ 
H

EB
ER

 C
IT

Y
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 ♦
 N

AM
PA

 ♦
 S

PO
KA

N
E

11/23/2021

P.
 L

U
C

IA

P.
 L

U
C

IA

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

210036

W
IL

LO
W

 W
O

O
D

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

3

3

1

2

INSTALL CULVERT CROSSING

EXISTING IRRIGATION DITCH

TP-1

EXISTING IRRIGATION DITCH

EXISTING IRRIGATION
OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 20' IRRIGATION
EASEMENT

1C

1C

1C

16C

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR
WILLOW WOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISION

A PORTION OF LOT 2 OF SECTION 31
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN

CANYON  COUNTY, IDAHO
2021

4

CITY OF MIDDLETON
MEADOW CREEK WAY TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

CL PLRW

7

1

2

3

4

5

6



             
        

2 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Proposed Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 1 

 

 
After Recording, mail to 
Middleton City Administrator 
1103 W. Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between 
the CITY OF MIDDLETON, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (City); and 
Joseph L. Austin and Deborah Austin, husband and wife, referred to hereafter as 
Developer (Developer). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer owns approximately 21 acres of real property located 
at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R3757901 and R37579011, Middleton, Canyon 
County, Idaho, legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference (Property); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property (also known as Willow 
Wood Estates Subdivision) according to the Middleton City Code and the City’s public 
works standards at the time(s) the Property is improved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code §67-6511A, has the authority to 
annex and rezone the property and to enter into a development agreement for the 
purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development agreement to proceed in 
a specific area and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but 
for which all allowed uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant 
to the Idaho Code and Middleton City Code. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals 
above, which are incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 2 

 

performances herein bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of 
Idaho Code §67-6511A and Middleton City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 

ARTICLE II 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE  

 
 The City will adopt an ordinance to annex and rezone the Property from 
Canyon County Agricultural to City of Middleton R-3 (Single Family Residential). The 
Ordinance will become effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded 
according to law, all of which actions the City will perform at the city’s expense and 
with the Developer’s cooperation. 
 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
 3.1 Applications. Developer will develop the Property subject to the 
conditions and limitations set forth in this Development Agreement. Further, 
Developer shall submit such applications regarding preliminary plat and final plat 
reviews, and/ or any special use permits, if applicable, and any other applicable 
applications as may be required by the Middleton City Code, which shall comply with 
the Middleton City Code, as it exists at the time such applications are made except as 
otherwise provided within this Development Agreement. 
 

3.2  Concept Plan. The Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 
represents Developer’s current concept for completion of the project. Developer shall 
be bound by this Concept Plan and shall develop the project substantially consistent 
with the Concept Plan.  

 
3.3 Frontage Improvements. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 

fifty foot (50’) half-road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street per City 
standards and codes and dedicate the same to the City prior to approval of final plat for 
Phase 1. 
 

3.2 Proportionate Share Fees: Developer shall pay City required traffic 
proportionate share fees in the amount of ___________________________________ 
dollars ($___________) prior to final plat approval for Phase 1. Payment of the 
proportionate share fees will be a condition of approval for Phase 1 final plat. 

 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 3 

 

3.3 Final Plat Deadline & Termination of Agreement. Developer shall 
obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for Phase 1 within two years of the 
date the preliminary plat is approved. Upon written request prior to the expiration of 
said two year period, Developer may apply administratively with a written request 
for a one year extension to obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat.  
Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV, if Developer does not obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within two years of the date the 
preliminary plat is approved or within the time-period of a one year extension, then 
Developer will be in material breach of this Agreement.  Additionally, the preliminary 
plat shall become null and void. The City, after complying with the notice and hearing 
requirements contained in the Middleton City Code and Idaho State Code, may then 
choose to extend, modify, or terminate this Agreement. The City may initiate the 
foregoing proceedings and may do so at any time following a material breach hereof. 
Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the zoning that is in place at the time 
of the termination, and the zoning for the Property shall remain R-3. No delay in 
initiating proceedings to extend, modify, or terminate this Agreement following a 
material beach by Developer shall constitute a waiver of said breach. 

 
3.4 Two Year intervals for Final Plat.  After final plat approval for Phase 

1, Developer shall be required to obtain the City Engineer’s signature on each phase’s 
final plat within two years of final plat approval on the previous phase.  Upon written 
request prior to the expiration of said two-year period, Developer may apply 
administratively with a written request for a one year extension to obtain City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat under consideration.  If Developer does not 
timely apply for a one-year extension or does not subsequently obtain the Engineer’s 
signature on the final plat within the one year extension time period, then the 
preliminary plat for said phase and all subsequent phases shall become null and void, 
and Developer must resubmit the preliminary plat for said phases in order to 
continue to develop the Property. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 
 
 4.1 If the Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in 
this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may 
be modified or terminated by the Middleton City Council, after complying with the 
notice and hearing requirement contained in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code.   
  If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this 
Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this 
Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the amended 
terms. 
  Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived 
and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any subsequent 
breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 4 

 

 
 4.2 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the zoning should 
remain R-3, or as otherwise provided in the Idaho Code, then the Developer hereby 
consents to such reversion or other action and will cease uses not allowed or 
permitted in the R-3 zone. 
  
 4.3 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the 
specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be 
awarded damages for failure of performance of both, or may obtain rescission, 
disconnection, and damages for repudiation or material failure of performance. 
 
 4.4 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE.  Upon any failure of any party to 
this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming 
such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the 
alleged failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement may be 
found to have occurred if performance has commenced to the satisfaction of the 
complaining party with thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notice. 

 
ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting 
the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements 
between the parties respecting the Property. 
 
 5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
made only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 
 5.3 Any notice that a party may desire to give to another party must be in 
writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested, or by Federal Express or other 
reputable overnight delivery service.  Notice shall be given to the parties at the 
following addresses or such other address and to such other persons as the parties 
may designate after giving notice.  Any such notice shall be deemed given upon 
delivery if by personal delivery, upon deposit in the United States mail if sent by mail 
pursuant to the forgoing: 
 
 
    
   Middleton: City Clerk 
     City of Middleton 
     P.O. Box 487 
     Middleton, Idaho 83644 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 5 

 

 
    
 
   Developer: _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
 
      
 5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said 
failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of 
curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be 
reimbursed to the other party upon demand.  In the event a suit or action is filed by 
either party against the other to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party to such litigation agrees to pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred therein, including the same with 
respect to an appeal. 
 
 5.5 The Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed.  This 
Agreement shall become valid and binding only upon its approval by the City Council 
and execution of the Mayor and City Clerk.  After its execution, the Agreement shall 
be recorded in the office of the County Recorded at the expense of the City. 
 
 5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be 
a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for 
the benefit of the Property, adjacent property and other residential land near the 
Property. 
  This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and their 
respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors 
and assigns.  Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, 
then each owner of a legal lot shall only be responsible for duties and obligations or 
breaches as to their owners’ parcels or lots. 
  The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, 
without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee’s sale 
or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments and other obligations arising under 
this Agreement with respect only to such owner’s lot or parcel. 
 
 5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon 
County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the 
laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed.  Any action 
brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 
jurisdiction located in Canyon County, Idaho. 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 6 

 

 5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or 
the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid 
or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this 
Agreement. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to be 
executed, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2021 and effective upon annexation and 
rezoning of the Property. 
 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON           ATTEST 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________          By: _______________________________________ 
       Steven J. Rule, Mayor       Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
State of IDAHO  ) 
             ss. 
County of Canyon  ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this _________ day of ___________________, 2021, 
personally appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who declared that he is the Mayor of the City 
of Middleton, Idaho and signed this Development Agreement as Mayor of the City of 
Middleton.   
 
 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
 
 

[Signatures on following page] 
 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 7 

 

 
 
 
 
JOSEPH L. AUSTIN 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
     
    
 
State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ___________________, 2021, personally 
appeared before me Joseph L. Austin, who declared that he signed this Development 
Agreement in the capacity of Developer and Owner of the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision. 
 
            
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
DEBORAH R. AUSTIN 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
     
 
 
State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ___________________, 2021, personally 
appeared before me Deborah R. Austin, who declared that she signed this Development 
Agreement in the capacity of Developer and Owner of the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision. 
 
  
            



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 8 

 

      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 



             
        

3 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Agency Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Carl Hayes
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: Willow Wood Estates Subdivision
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 2:48:42 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Standard piping requirements apply as this project borders the C-East 18.1-3.4 Lateral.
 
Thank you,
 
 
 

 

mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com



 
November 8, 2021 

 

City of Middleton, Idaho 

Planning & Zoning Department 

1103 West Main Street  

Middleton, ID 83644 

Attention:  Roberta Stewart, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

 

RE: Cemetery Road-Willow Wood Subdivision—Preliminary Plat 

 

Mrs. Stewart: 

 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 (CHD4) has reviewed the preliminary plat dated 7/30/21 for 

Willow Wood Estates Subdivision.  The development consists of approximately 21 acres with 63 

buildable lots.  The development is located on parcels R3757901000 and R3757901100.  The 

development is requesting annexation, preliminary plat, and R-3 zoning from Middleton City.  

The Subdivision is located on the east side of Cemetery Road approximately 2,770’ north of 

Willis Road 

 

CHD4 offers the following recommendations: 

 

General 

By agreement with the City, CHD4 maintains Cemetery Road 0.5 miles north of Willis Road to 

Purple Sage Road.  Under this agreement, CHD4 may provide comment on development or other 

permit activity, which may affect traffic operations or maintenance of Middleton Road.   

 

Cemetery Road 

At time of improvement drawing review the following shall be shown: 

 CHD4 policy requires a 5-year moratorium on road cuts in any newly rebuilt road.  

Cemetery Road was rebuilt in 2020.   

o New utilities are shown to extend 100’ north of the subdivision’s south property 

line in existing Cemetery Road.  

 Applicant shall remove and rebuild full width of road beginning 

approximately 25’ south of the quarter corner and extend north 

beyond the perpendicular sewer crossing and terminate at next 

available warm joint.  This includes any borrow ditches and road 

appurtenances. 

 If utility construction in Cemetery Road extends beyond depicted 

limits—Middleton City shall take over maintenance responsibilities 

of Cemetery Road. 

 

Please consider extending sewer east, via Meadow Creek Way, to prevent additional utility cuts 

on Cemetery.  Can this be addressed through improvement plans from Estates at West Highlands 

(see email dated 11/8/21)? 



Page 2 of 2 

CHD4 asks the City to consider the following: 

 Centerline is offset approximately 2.5’ west from section line.  Widen Cemetery Road 

from section line per Middleton typical section. 

 

Access to Cemetery to come by future Meadow Creek Way shown as Meadow Park Street on 

Willow Wood plan. 

 

Traffic Impact 

Traffic mitigation will be addressed through subdivision frontage improvements and impact fees. 

 

Please feel free to contact with any questions on this matter. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
Lenny Riccio, E.I.T. 

Assistant District Engineer 

Transportation Planner 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 

 



Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

This proposal is on the fringe of the City of Middleton surrounded by farmland and removed from employment 
centers. Cemetery Road is identified in the Middleton Connects 2015 City Vision Map as having a Public Use 
Pathway and Bike Lane in the future. The Picadilly Park Park and Ride is approximately is about 2 miles away. This 
stop is not currently served, but ValleyConnect 2.0 proposes future service at this location with an express route 
from Happy Day Transit Center to Saint Luke’s regional hospital in Meridian, via Hwy-44, with 30-minute 
frequencies. 
 

 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Willow Wood Estates    Agency: Middleton 

CIM Vision Category: Future Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 63   New jobs: 0   Exceeds CIM forecast: No 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 927 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 750 
Jobs within 1 mile: 70 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.1 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 1.1 miles 
Nearest public park: 1.3 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: Purple Sage Road 
Pedestrian level of stress: R 
Bicycle level of stress: R 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: 2.3 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.2 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


Fiscal Impact Analysis Supplemental for the 
Development Review Checklist

The purpose of the fiscal impact analysis is to better estimate expected revenues and costs to local 
governments as a result of new development so that the public, stakeholders, and the decision-
makers can better manage growth. Capital and operating expenditures are determined by various 
factors that determine service and infrastructure needs, including persons per household, student 
generation rates, lot sizes, street frontages, vehicle trip and trip adjustment factors, average trip 
lengths, construction values, income, discretionary spending, and employment densities.

The COMPASS Development Checklist considers the level of fiscal benefits, how many public agencies 
benefit or are burdened by additional growth, and how long the proposal will take to achieve a fiscal 
break-even point, if at all. More information about the COMPASS Fiscal Impact Tool is available at: 
www.compassidaho.org/prodserv/fiscalimpact.htm.

Overall Net Fiscal Impact

Net Fiscal Impact, by Agency

City

Highway District

Break Even:

County

School District



             
        

4 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

City Engineer & Planner Comments 





CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487, 1103 W. Main St., Middleton, ID  83644 

208-585-3133  Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletoncity.com    

www.middleton.id.gov 
 

 
 
 
October 4, 2021 
 
 

Planner Comments 
Willow Wood Estates Subdivision – Pre-Plat dated 7/29/2021 

 
 

1. Please send copy of the agreement showing you have right to control (or own) 9th Street 
Right of way, proving that you will be able to improve and dedicate the Right of Way 
upon completion of construction. 

2. Does the current annexation legal description and sketch include the 9th Street Right of 
Way?  How is that going to be handled? 

3. The Traffic Study indicates that this 63 lot subdivision has no material effect on any 
nearby intersections, removing the need to collect proportionate share dues.  We need 
to get Amy Woodruff’s opinion on that conclusion. 

4. Missing a landscape plan 
5. Need to show perimeter fence around entire subdivision. Either show it on the pre-plat or 

add it to the landscape plan. 
6. Change name of Redbud Street to Redbud Avenue since it is a north/south roadway. 
7. Add note to the “Notes” section stating that L16/B1 is a private drive.  Also note that it 

has a public easement applied to the entire drive.  Finally, put an additional call-out note 
regarding the easement next to the drive on the pre-plat. 

8. Block 1, Lots 7, 8 and 9 need widened to 75’ 
9. Block 1, Lot 4; Block 2, Lots 3 and 4; Block 3 Lots 6 & 7 need notations to show they are 

at least 75’ wide at the 25’ setback line. 
10. L7/B1 size needs to be increased to 8000. 
11. You are a little over the density allowed, but it is by just a hair so we’re inclined to 

overlook it.  But, you have multiple lots that don’t have enough frontage width or 
minimum size.  If you can’t get these deficient lots to meet the minimum code standards, 
then you may have to remove a lot from the plat to make more room.  It you can get all 
lots to meet minimum dimensional standards, then I don’t think the City will mind that 
you are a “touch” over the density allowed.  Up to you. 

12. I can’t find the following common lots on the plat:  L8/B3 and L13/B4.  Please remove 
notation and renumber lots or show me where they are. 

13. What is planned for the little landlocked parcel L2C/Block 2?  Why is that parcel there? 
14. Show mailbox clusters on the pre-plat 
15. You are overstating your open space.  When I count the 3 large common lots together, it 

is a little over an acre, which may get you to 5%.  One of the 3 common lots may not 
really be sufficient to deem “Open Space” in the spirit of the Code, but we can try.  We 
cannot include the landscape buffers and smaller endcap buffers in the open space 
count. They do not meet the spirit of the “Open Space” code.  If you add an amenity on 
one of the bigger common lots, that will help create the sense of meeting the 5% open 
space requirement.  A playground, or gathering structure, benches…etc., something to 



 

 

 

 

provide 5% gathering space for the residents.  Whatever you choose needs to be shown 
on the pre-plat.   

16. I can’t tell if you have the landscape berm required by MCC5-4-10-2 and MCC 5-4-10-6.  
If that common lot along Cemetery will serve as the required buffer, then put a little call-
out note showing that is has a landscape buffer easement on it. 

17. Will there be any phasing?  If so, please create a phasing page. 
18. Please change or add the following notes to the “Note” section: 

a. Change Note 1 to state “building setbacks and dimension standards shall be in 
accordance with the Middleton city Code at the time of building permit issuance.” 

b. All streets proposed in this subdivision are public streets and shall be constructed 
in accordance with Middleton standards for public streets 

c. Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the city of Middleton 
d. Sanitary sewer collection shall be provided by the City of Middleton 
e. Any re-subdivision of this plat shall comply with the applicable zoning regulations 

in effect at the time of the re-subdivision. 
f. All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All septic systems 

shall be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 
g. Sewer and Water capacity shall be reserved when City approves the construction 

drawings. 
h. All lots are hereby designated as having a permanent easement for public utilities 

and pedestrian walkways over the 10’ adjacent to any public right of way. This 
easement shall not preclude the construction of hard-surfaced driveways and 
walkways to each lot. 

i. All lots contain a 10’ wide easement adjacent to any rear lot line or subdivsion 
boundary for public utilities.  

j. All interior lot lines contain a 5’ wide easement, each side, for public and private 
utilities, drainage and irrigation facilities. 

19. Please type out a formal response to each comment explaining whether you agree to the 
change requests or why you disagree with the change request. 

 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton City Planner  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “E” 



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton City Council 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 

 
 
In the Matter of the Request of Joseph Austin and David Sterling/T-O Engineers for 
Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement with respect to the Willow 
Wood Estates Subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R37579011 and 
3757901): 
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021, 
which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021 
(Exhibit “A”). 

 
3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of 

December 1, 2021 (Exhibit “A”). 
 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, and Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13; Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC; and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-
15, 5-1, 5-3, and 5-4:   See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 
2021 (Exhibit “A”). 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local 
Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing were given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 
and Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-1329 and 50-
222. 

 
6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 



             
        

2 
 

impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 

7. That these approvals are subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached 
Staff Report for the hearing date of December 1, 2021, which report is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, except Applicant/Developer 
shall be allowed to complete Cemetery Road frontage improvements along Phase 2 of 
the preliminary plat at the time of Phase 2 Infrastructure Improvements.  That portion of 
Cemetery Road shall be dedicated to the City prior to final plat approval for Phase 2.  

 
C. Decision and Order: 

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that: 
 

1. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Annexation and 
Rezone with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing on the matter.  (Exhibit “A”) 

2. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Development 
Agreement with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to 
the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing on the matter.  (Exhibit “A”) 

3. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for preliminary plat 
with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing on the matter. (Exhibit “A”) 
 
 

 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: December _____, 2021. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule, Mayor 
      City of Middleton 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Department 

 



EXHIBIT “F” 



 

Ordinance No. 655   Page 1 
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 655 
Willow Wood Estates Subdivision Annexation 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, 
ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
SITUATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, 
IDAHO; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL 
PROPERTY TO R-3 (SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL); DIRECTING THAT COPIES 
OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO:  

Section 1. That the Middleton City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning & 
Zoning Commission, and following the public notice and hearing procedures set forth in the Local 
Land Use Planning Act and Middleton City Code Title 1, Chapter 14, approved the Willow Wood 
Estates Annexation and Rezone at a public hearing held on December 1, 2021.  

Section 2. The following described property, commonly known as 0 Cemetery Road (Tax 
Parcel Nos. R37579011 and R3757901), comprising approximately 21 acres, more or less, is 
contiguous to the City of Middleton, Idaho, and the applicant has requested that said following 
described property should be annexed into the City of Middleton as R-3 (Single Family 
Residential):  

 
See Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference. 
 
Section 3.  That the above-described property is hereby annexed into the corporate limits 

of the City of Middleton and zoned R-3 (Single Family Residential). 

Section 4.  That the City Engineer and the Planning & Zoning Director of the City of 
Middleton, Idaho, are hereby instructed to so designate the same above described property on the 
official zoning map and other area maps of the City of Middleton, Idaho as lying within the city 
limits and zoned R-3 (Single Family Residential).  

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed, rescinded and annulled.  

Section 6. This ordinance shall be in full force and in effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication, according to law.  

Section 7. The Clerk of the City of Middleton, Idaho shall, within 10 days following the 
effective date of this ordinance, duly file a certified copy of this ordinance and a map prepared in 
a draftsman-like manner plainly and clearly designating the boundaries of the City of Middleton, 



 

Ordinance No. 655   Page 2 
 

including the land herein annexed, with the following officials of the County of Canyon, State of 
Idaho, to-wit: the Recorder, Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor and shall file simultaneously a 
certified copy of this ordinance with the State Tax Commission of the State of Idaho, all in 
compliance with Idaho Code § 63-215.  

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this 1st 
day of December, 2021.  
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this 
____ day of _______________________, 2021. 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 
Mayor Steven J. Rule     Becky Crofts 
City of Middleton                                                       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Ordinance No. 655   Page 3 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Legal Description of Annexed Property 

 
 
 







 

EXHIBIT “G” 







 

EXHIBIT “H” 









 

EXHIBIT “I” 



















 

EXHIBIT “J” 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

           1d  



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton City Council 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 

 
 
In the Matter of the Request of Joseph Austin and David Sterling/T-O Engineers for 
Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement with respect to the Willow 
Wood Estates Subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R37579011 and 
3757901): 
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021, 
which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021 
(Exhibit “A”). 

 
3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of 

December 1, 2021 (Exhibit “A”). 
 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, and Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13; and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 
5-3, and 5-4:   See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021 
(Exhibit “A”). 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local 
Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing were given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards relevant to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 
and Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-1329 and 50-
222. 

 
6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 

impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 



             
        

2 
 

7. That these approvals are subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached 
Staff Report for the hearing date of December 1, 2021, and the additional conditions of 
approval as follows: 

 
i. Applicant/Developer must construct all portions of the Cemetery Road frontage 

up to the sewer main crossing in the northwest corner of the project, and 
dedicate the same to the City, before final plat approval for phase 1. The 
remaining portion of the Cemetery Road frontage to the north may be bonded 
at the time of phase 1 final plat but must be completed and dedicated to the 
City prior to final plat approval for Phase 2. This requirement shall also be set 
forth in the Development Agreement. 
 

ii. Applicant developer shall be allowed a ninety (90) foot turning radius. 
 

C. Decision and Order: 
 

Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that: 
 

1. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Annexation and 
Rezone with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing (Exhibit “A”) and item #7 above.   

2. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Development 
Agreement with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to 
the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing (Exhibit “A”) and item #7 above.   

3. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for preliminary plat 
with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, public 
hearing (Exhibit “A”) and item #7 above.  
 

 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: December _____, 2021. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule, Mayor 
      City of Middleton 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Department 

 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
      EXHIBIT "A"

rstewart
Typewritten Text
         Staff Report for 12/1/2021 Public Hearing - City Council

rstewart
Typewritten Text




 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                           Middleton City Council 
 
 

 

 

 
Willow Wood Estates Subdivision 

Snapshot Summary 
  

             
 

                                

A. City Council Hearing Date: December 1, 2021   

B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 62 buildable lots and 10 common 
lots on 21 acres of vacant land located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcels Nos. 
R37579011 and R3757901).  Amenities include two large common lots with 
greenspace, tot lot, seating areas, and pathways. 

C. Application Requests: Applicant has three applications: (1) annexation and rezone 
to R-3 zoning, (2) preliminary plat, and (3) Development Agreement.  
 

D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently located in the 
County and zoned Agricultural.  The property to the east and south is within City limits 

rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



             
        

2 
 

and zoned R-3. The property on the north and west is County property and zoned 
Agricultural.  

 
E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately west and south of the 

project and easily accessible to the project. 

                 
 

F. Traffic, Access & Streets:   
 
Access to the subdivision is via Meadow Park Street and Explorer Street that connects 
to The Crossing at Meadow Parks.  
 
As required by City Code, Developer will improve, at its own cost, the ½ road portions 
of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street. Although Developer at one time owned 
the property fronting Meadow Park, it does not currently own that frontage property.  
However, Developer recognizes the need for the City to build critical east/west roads, 
so it has entered into an agreement with the current owner of the property to build 
those frontage improvements and dedicate the same to the City.  Planning Staff 
recommends that City Council make a condition of approval the requirement that 
Meadow Park frontage improvement and dedication to the City must occur before final 
plat for Phase 1 is approved.  

                               



             
        

3 
 

Applicant completed a Traffic Study which is currently being updated. It will show 
percentage of impacts this subdivision will have on surrounding intersections, and 
Developer will be required to pay for those impacts via a proportionate share traffic fee 
that must be paid prior to final plat approval for phase 1. This requirement will be set 
forth in the proposed Development Agreement.  
 

G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space:  Developer has provided 5% open space in 
compliance with the code by providing large common lots containing pathways, 
seating areas, and a tot lot.   
 

H. Storm drain and Pressurized Irrigation: Storm drain facilities and pressurized 
irrigation have been provided and are approved by the City Engineer. 
 

I. Middleton Rural Fire District:  The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire 
District. The Fire District is backed up with review of Middleton, Canyon County and 
Star preliminary plats and has not had a chance to issue comments on this application. 
 
City Council can still approve the preliminary plat, but it is critical that compliance with 
Middleton Fire District comments be made a condition of approval.  Once that is done, 
then City Engineer will work with Developer and the Fire District to make sure the 
Construction documents for the subdivision infrastructure include all Fire District 
requirements. 
 

J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 21 acre project parcel 
be annexed into the City of Middleton and zoned R-3, which permits three single family 
homes per gross acre.   
 
There are three requirements for annexation approval: (1) the property must be 
contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, 
(3) the annexation is in the best interest of the City and not adverse to the public 
health and welfare.  
 
As to a zone change request, the Council must make two findings before approving 
such a request: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services 
and (2) the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation 
requirements.  (1) The property is contiguous; (2) sewer and water are available as 
shown above, and (3) the City will benefit from the housing provided and street 
improvements that are made, and the project will not adversely affect the public health 
and welfare because City services can be provided efficiently and economically.  
 



             
        

4 
 

As to the zone change, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the 
City’s ability to deliver services. And, as will be shown in more detail in section M 
below, Planning Staff finds that the rezone is in harmony with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 

K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows two phases for 
development, and it complies with all Middleton codes and standards. The only 
exception from code is applicant’s request to lower the code required turning radius of 
125’ to 90’. City Staff is in the process of changing the Code to allow 90’ turning 
radius. It will be heard by P&Z on December 6th.  

 

    
             
                [A copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.] 
                  
Findings: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and 
requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho 
State Code except for the waiver noted above.   
 



             
        

5 
 

Planning Staff further finds that the preliminary plat is not materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety and welfare as noted directly above in the section on 
Annexation/Rezone. Additionally, the preliminary plat is in harmony with the Middleton 
Comprehensive Plan as will be shown in more detail in Section M below. 
 

L. Development Agreement:  Annexation and rezone requests generally require a 
Development Agreement (“DA”).  Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for 
the DA, and have merely added six new provisions: 
 

a. A concept plan shall be attached to the Development Agreement, and 
Developer shall construct the project “substantially consistent” with the concept 
plan.  

b. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 50’ half-road portions of Cemetery 
Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City prior to 
approval of final plat for phase 1. 

c. Developer shall pay additional pro-rata or proportionate share fees for all traffic 
impacts and intersection controls affected by the subdivision prior to final plat 
approval for phase 1. 

d. All construction shall be in compliance with R-3 zoning. 
e. If Developer does not bring phase 1 to final plat within 2 years of preliminary 

plat approval (or 3 years with a 1 year extension request), then the Developer 
will be in breach of contract, and City will have the option of terminating the 
Development Agreement. The preliminary plat will also become null and void, 
and the property will remain R-3 zoning. 

f. After final plat approval for Phase 1, Developer will obtain final plat approval for 
each successive phase within 2 years (or 3 years with a 1 year extension) of 
the final plat approval for the previous phase.  
 

A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”. 
 

M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated 
“Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the 
site. 
 
Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of 
the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 
 

a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in 
light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.  

b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that 
pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives 
when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, quality lots for residential use 
increase the quality of life and general welfare of the City. 

c. Goals 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the 
project is located.  



             
        

6 
 

N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None. 
 
O. Comments from Agencies: Comments from Black Canyon Irrigation District were 

received on November 2, 2021 and November 19, 2021.  Black Canyon merely 
reminded applicant of piping requirements. Comments from COMPASS were received 
on November 5th. The agency noted informational items, including viability of public 
transportation for the site. On November 8th, CHD4 submitted comments concerning 
moratorium on cuts to newly rebuilt roads, portion of road that needs rebuilt, and 
notice that the section line was offset 2 ½ feet.  Agency comments are attached as 
Exhibit “C”. 
 

P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:  
 

Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “D”. 
 

Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on March 16, 2021. Applicants are 
Joseph Austin (Owner) and David Sterling/T-O Engineering. 2471 S. Titanium, 
Meridian ID 83642.  (208) 323-2288. 

 
R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 

      

Newspaper Notification     11/14/2021 
 

 Radius notification mailed to 
 Adjacent landowners within 300’    11/12/2021  

 
 Circulation to Agencies     11/10/2021  
 
 Sign Posting property     11/12/2021 

 
Neighborhood Meeting     02/17/2021 
 

S. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-
3, and 5-4, an Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-1329, 
and 50-222. 
 

T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
City Council is considering three applications for (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) 
Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. Per State law and the Middleton 
City Code, any decision and order must be based upon findings of facts and 
conclusions of law.   
 



             
        

7 
 

As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and agrees with any of 
the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Council should make 
a motion to accept those findings of facts.  
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to 
hear these applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice 
requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State 
Code and Middleton Code to be considered in making a decision on the applications.   
If the December 1st public hearing is held and conducted in compliance with Idaho 
State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the Council may accept these 
conclusions of law by passing a motion to accept the conclusions of law set forth in the 
staff report and at the public hearing.   
 
If the Council is inclined to approve the three applications based upon the above 
Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any 
approval be subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer 
services are to be extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. Owner/Developer shall construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to 
Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City of 
Middleton prior to approval of final plat for phase 1. 

3. Owner/Developer to update their initial Traffic Impact Study and pay all City 
required proportionate share traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 1. 

4. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved. 
5. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and 

approved. 
6. Tot Lot located on Lot 1C, Block 3 to include seating area/benches. 
7. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the 

construction drawings for the project. 

Finally, if the Commission recommends denial of the preliminary plat application, then 
pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Commission must state on the record 
what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s). 

 
 

Prepared by Middleton Planner, Roberta Stewart    Dated: 11/24/2021 

 



 

1 
 

              
 

  

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Preliminary Plat under review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP 111'

111'

111'

115'

111'

10
7'

10
7'

10
7'

10
7'

10
8'13

4'

75
'

107'

107'

107'

107'

114'

114'

37'

107'

10
0'

80' 80' 80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

85' 80' 80' 80' 80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
7'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

10
7'

10
0'

97
'

111'

111'

111'

75
'

20
'

57'

26
'

11
3'

12
7'

117'

6C

3

11

4

10

5

987

1 2

198'

129'80'80'80'80'65'

80
'

80
'

65' 80' 80' 80' 80' 12'

10
0'

80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

114'

10
7'

12
7'

11
3'

432

126'

66'80'80'80'25'

20'

185'

10
0'

80'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

621

35
'

27'80'80'80'80'80'80'28'

35
'

87
'

65' 80' 75' 75' 75' 75' 75' 60'

57'

97
'

8,414 SF 8,000 SF

8,000 SF8,000 SF8,000 SF

8,025 SF8,560 SF9,009 SF

18,725 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF

8,000 SF8,000 SF8,414 SF
12

4'

102'

19'

91
'

31
'

45'

23
'

107'

107'

3 1' 68' 75'

2 5 '

54'

87
'

75'

IR

2C

15
8,568 SF

23'

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

2

3

4

5

9,297 SF

8,325 SF

9,050 SF

13,031 SF

103'

75'

75'

75'

111'

75'

111'

83'

85'

65'

31
'

91'

75'

92'

50'
20'

75'

43
'

3 2 ' 155'

133'

19,816 SF

75'75'75'88'

44'

87'75'75'75'20'114'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

10
1'

44
'

81'

8 2
'

31'

3 1

' 19'

3 1

'

102'

146'

87'

47
'

298'458'

1C

1C

83'

85'

75'

67'

3

7

8

10

19 20

1C

4 9,330 SF

8,024 SF

8,023 SF

8,024 SF

9,333 SF

8,025 SF 9,277 SF

102'

20
'

55 '

20'

56 418
8,025 SF9,277 SF 8,025 SF

25,532 SF

8,028 SF

102'

87
'

31'67'63'
75'

25'

68
'

3'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

75
'

29
'

27'

14

5

13

84

17

3 7

1510 12

85'

87
'

72' 75'75'75'75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

75'

80'

77'

92'

48'

8,000 SF

8,025 SF

8,000 SF

8,188 SF8,025 SF

8,308 SF

8,025 SF 8,025 SF

8,000 SF8,393 SF 8,000 SF

48
'

1C

31'

68'

24'

20'

16
'

385'

6

5C

14

13

16C
17

12

11

9

3

R/
WR/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R/W

R/WR/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W
R/W

R
/W

R/WR/W

9C

9,297 SF

8,173 SF

8,568 SF

8,530 SF

9,045 SF

8,025 SF

8,024 SF

8,023 SF

8,241 SF

11 16

80'93'

8,000 SF

12'
75'

10'

15'

8,000 SF

R/W

R/W

R/WR/W

2

6

43

1C

9

8

7

2

5
9,361 SF

8,325 SF

10,925 SF
10,084 SF

9,127 SF

8,325 SF

8,325 SF

9,127 SF

8,325 SF

91
'

31'
63'

11
1'

12'
9' 38'

72
'

55'

7'

2'

73'

75'

63'

75'

63'

31'

91'

20'

30
'

BM#1

BM#3

N
00

°2
1'

18
"E

 8
71

.9
0'

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

50' ROW

24.00'

75.00'

75.00'

R90'

R90
'

R90' R90
'

R
100'

R26.00'

R25.50'

50' ROW

24.00' LANDSCAPING
BUFFER EASEMENT

24' LANDSCAPING
BUFFER EASEMENT

SEE NOTE 8

24.00'

SEE NOTE 8

EXPLORER ST

LONE OAK ST.

R
ED

BU
D

 A
VE

ACADIA ST

IVORY LILAC ST

RAVENWOOD ST.

TIM
BERWOOD ST.

SUGAR MAPLE AVE.

SU
M

AC
 A

VE
.

C
R

YSTAL R
IVER

 AVE.

20.00' IRRIGATION
DITCH EASEMENT

20.00' IRRIGATION
DITCH EASEMENT

BM#2

76.03'
76.00'

R25.50'

R25.50'

S35°57'26"E 945.76'

C4

S89°52'37"E 148.56'

S00°39'17"W 52.74'

N89°52'37"W 184.40'

S39
°5

9'0
2"

W
 28

8.1
8'

N89°52'14"W 922.81'

N72°41'19"E 606.24'

2.0'2.0'5.0' 17.5' 17.5' 5.0' 0.5'0.5'

25.0'25.0'

50.0'

CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH
MICRO FIBER MESH, 5" THICK,

 ITEM 706.4.1.E.1

STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

15" OF STRUCTURAL SUBBASE,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1

6.0'

50.0'

11.0' 6.0'

8.0'
SIDEWALK25.0' 8.0' 9.0'

24.0' TRAFFIC BUFFER EASEMENT

21" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

9" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

4" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
2" PLANT MIX PAVEMENT
 ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

STANDARD 6" VERTICAL
CURB AND GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.5

REPLACE ASPHALT TO
ROAD CENTERLINE

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C4

RADIUS

25.65'

LENGTH

16.38'

DELTA

36°35'56"

BEARING

S17°45'14"E

CHORD

16.11'

0 8040 240160

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR
WILLOW WOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISION

A PORTION OF LOT 2 OF SECTION 31
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN

CANYON  COUNTY, IDAHO
2021

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 F
O

R
:

LO
T 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S

C0.00

SHEET INDEX
C0.00 LOT DIMENSIONS

C0.01 UTILITY PLAN

SURVEY INFORMATION
T-O ENGINEERS- LADD CLUFF, PLS PHONE NO. (208)-323-2288

ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88).

NORTHING: 753532.776 NORTHING: 752653.132 NORTHING: 752871.528

EASTING: 2391692.969 EASTING: 2391687.504 EASTING: 2392954.832

ELEVATION: 2473.34 ELEVATION: 2461.92 ELEVATION: 2465.91

DESCRIPTION: 5/8" REBAR WITH
ILLEGIBLE CAP DESCRIPTION:

5/8" REBAR "CLS 7732"
DESCRIPTION:

5/8" REBAR "PLS 9366"

BM#1 BM#2 BM#3

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

22
"x

34
"

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

, S
UR

VE
YO

RS
 &

 P
LA

NN
ER

S

C
  2

02
1 T

-O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

  A
N

Y 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, R

EU
SE

 O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
 IT

S 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

IS
 S

TR

D
ES

IG
N

ED

D
R

AW
N

C
H

EC
KE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BO
R

D
ER

 S
IZ

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.T

O
-E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

C
O

M

H
:\2

10
03

6\
3_

AC
AD

D
W

G
\S

H
EE

TS
\P

R
EP

LA
T\

21
00

36
 -C

-P
P.

D
W

G
, 1

1/
23

/2
02

1

24
71

 S
. T

IT
AN

IU
M

 P
LA

C
E

M
ER

ID
IA

N
, I

D
AH

O
 8

36
42

PH
O

N
E:

 (2
08

) 3
23

-2
28

8

10 1/2
ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE
1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

BO
IS

E 
♦ 

C
O

D
Y 

♦ 
C

O
EU

R
 D

'A
LE

N
E 

♦ 
H

EB
ER

 C
IT

Y
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 ♦
 N

AM
PA

 ♦
 S

PO
KA

N
E

11/23/2021

P.
 L

U
C

IA

P.
 L

U
C

IA

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

210036

W
IL

LO
W

 W
O

O
D

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AREA AND LOT SUMMARY

TOTAL AREA ±904,260 SF 20.8 ACRES

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL AREA ±525,627 SF 12.1 ACRES

TOTAL COMMON/OPEN SPACE AREA ±132,208 SF 3.0 ACRES

INTERIOR COMMON/OPEN SPACE AREA ±48,371 1.1 ACRES

RIGHT OF WAY AREA ±198,054 SF 4.5 ACRES

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 72

TOTAL NUMBER OF BUILDABLE LOTS 62

TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMON LOTS 10

PROPOSED DENSITY 2.99
UNITS/ACRE

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOT SIZE ±8,478 SF 0.19 ACRES

MINIMUM LOT SIZE 8000 SF 0.18 ACRES

PERCENTAGE TOTAL OPEN SPACE 14.62%

PERCENTAGE INTERIOR OPEN SPACE 5.35%

SITE DATA
OWNER/DEVELOPER
JOE AUSTIN
1746 WINDMILL SPRING CT.
MIDDLETON, ID 83644
PH: (208) 890-9955

ENGINEER
DAVID N. STERLING, P.E.
PAUL LUCIA III E.I.
T-O ENGINEERS, INC.
2471 S. TITANIUM
MERIDIAN, ID 83642
PH: (208) 323-2288

SURVEYOR
LADD CLUFF, P.L.S.
T-O ENGINEERS, INC.
2471 S. TITANIUM
MERIDIAN, ID 83642
PH: (208) 323-2288

ZONING AND SETBACK
ZONE - R-3
CITY SETBACKS
   FRONT = 25'
   REAR =  20'
   SIDE =   10'
   STREET SIDE = 20'

FIRE DISTRICT
CITY OF MIDDLETON

SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT
CITY OF MIDDLETON

IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PRIVATE

(PRESSURE IRRIGATION)

BLACK CANYON IRRIGATION DISTRICT

ROADWAY JURISDICTION
CITY OF MIDDLETON

SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLETON SCHOOL
DISTRICT #134

R/W

LEGEND

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EASEMENT

ROAD CENTERLINE

RESIDENTIAL LOT NUMBER

COMMON LOT NUMBER

BLOCK NUMBER

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP

FOUND 5/8 REBAR

CALCULATED POINT

1

1C
1

NOTES

1. BUILDING SETBACK AND DIMENSION STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT
ISSUANCE.

2. COMMON LOTS TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE WILLOW WOOD ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION.

3. STORM DRAINAGE WILL BE ROUTED TO INFILTRATION FACILITIES LOCATED IN COMMON AREAS. STORM DRAINAGE WILL BE DESIGNED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CATALOG OF STORM WATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR IDAHO CITIES AND COUNTIES AND THE CITY OF
MIDDLETON.

4. INDIVIDUAL PRESSURE IRRIGATION SERVICES WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE REAR OF EACH LOT. PRESSURE IRRIGATION WILL BE CONNECTED TO A
NEW PUMP STATION LOCATED IN COMMON LOT 1 BLOCK 2. THE SYSTEM WILL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. LOT OWNERS WILL BE
OBLIGATED TO PAY LEVIES AND ASSESSMENTS FROM THE APPLICABLE IRRIGATION DISTRICT.

5. IRRIGATION DITCHES THROUGH THE PROJECT SHALL BE PIPED WHERE THEY CROSS ROADWAYS WITH ALL STRUCTURES LOCATED BEYOND ANY
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. ALL IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

6. DIRECT LOT ACCESS TO CEMETERY ROAD IS PROHIBITED.

7. BLOCK 1, LOT 1, BLOCK 2 , LOT 1, BLOCK 3, LOT 1, BLOCK 4, LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 5, LOT 9,  BLOCK 6 LOT 6, BLOCK 7 LOT 1 ARE COMMON LOTS

8. BLOCK 1, LOTS 5 AND 16 ARE PRIVATE DRIVES AND BOTH CONTAIN A BLANKET PUBLIC ACCESS  AND UTILITY EASEMENT

9. ALL STREETS PROPOSED IN THIS SUBDIVISION ARE PUBLIC STREETS AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MIDDLETON STANDARDS
FOR PUBLIC STREETS.

10. DOMESTIC AND FIRE PROTECTION WATER ALONG WITH SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF MIDDLETON.

11. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RE-SUBDIVISION.

12. ALL EXISTING WELLS SHALL BE ABANDONED PER IDWR REGULATIONS. ALL SEPTIC SYSTEMS SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED AND THE AREA
RECOMPACTED PER THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

13. SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY SHALL BE RESERVED WHEN CITY APPROVES THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS.

14. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILTIES AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS OVER THE 10' ADJACENT
TO ANY PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF HARD SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS TO
EACH LOT.

15. ALL LOTS CONTAIN A 10 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT ADJACENT TO ANY REAR LOT LINE OR SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES & IRRIGATION

16. ALL INTERIOR LOTS CONTAIN A 5' WIDE EASEMENT, EACH SIDE, FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES, DRAINAGE AND IRRIGATION FACILITIES.

17. PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION WATER WILL BE PROVIDED TO EACH LOT FROM THE BLACK CANYON IRRIGATION DISTRICT. IN COMPLIANCE WITH IDAHO
CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(B), LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ENTITLED TO IRRIGATION WATER RIGHTS AND WILL BE OBLIGATED FOR LEVIES
AND ASSESSMENTS FROM SAID DISTRICTS AND COMPANIES.

CITY OF MIDDLETON
LOCAL ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

PROJECT SITE

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

WILLIS ROAD

PURPLE SAGE RD

NOTE:  P.L.S. SIGNATURE OF THIS DOCUMENT ONLY CERTIFIES THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY BOUNDARY SHOWN HEREON.

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1"=1000'

7

CAROL ANNA HEYDT
R3757900000

24712 CEMETERY RD

AG, COUNTY

JACK AND PEGGY LIVING TRUST R3758001100
11811 PURPLE SAGE RD

ZONE R-3

JOSEPH SWEENEY IV
R37579011A0

24556 CEMETERY RD

ESTATES 81 LLC
R3757700000

0 CEMETERY RD
APPROVED PRE PLAT FOR

ESTATES AT WEST HIGHLANDS No.1
ZONE R-3

DAN G WALRATH
R3820800000

24617 CEMETERY RD
AG, COUNTY

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

1C
11,818 SF

1C
7,900 SF

16C
3,174 SF

1C
32,392 SF

DARIN CHRISTIAN SORENSON
R3758118100

291 EXPLORER ST
ZONE R-3

DAVID BOHN
R3758121400

296 EXPLORER ST

ZONE R-3

BRANDON DAVID
R3758121300

299 TRAILBLAZER ST

ZONE R-3

VASILIY KARAZHOV
R3758121200

292 TRAILBLAZER ST

ZONE R-3

PROVIDENCE
PROPERTIES LLC

R3758118900
APPROVED PREPLAT FOR

THE CROSSING AT MEADOW PARK
SUBDIVISION No.1

ZONE R-3

1C
11,818 SF

CITY OF MIDDLETON
CEMETERY ROAD WIDENING TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

1

2

3

4

5

6

PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD

PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD

CL PL

BLACK POWDER LLC
R3820701100

0 CEMETERY RD

RW

P.O.B.

W. MEADOW CREEK WAY

21'21
' 5' 5'

IRRIGATION
PUMP STATION

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

TOT LOT

2C
7,388 SF



S

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

EG
EGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEG

EGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEG

50'

50'

24'24'

50'

50'

IR

IR
EXISTING IRRIGATION PIPE

IRRIGATION DITCH

EXISTING HEADWALL

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

R/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/W R/W R/W

R
/W

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R
/W

R/
W R/W R/W R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R/W R/W

R/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/W

R
/W

R/W

R/
W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W R/W

R
/W

R/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

2470

2471

2472

2473

2467

2466

24
65

24
64

2463

2462

2461

24602460

2461

2463

2462

2464

24
65

24
66

24
67

24
68

24
69

24
70

24
71

24
72

4

4

S

8''W 8''W 8''W
8''S 8''S

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8'
'W

8''S 8''S 8''S 8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8'
'S

8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W
8''S 8''S 8''S 8''S

8''W

8''S

S

S S

S

S

S

S

S S

S

S

ID

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI

PI
PI

PI
PI

PI

PI
PI

PIPIPIPIPI

PIPIPIPIPIPI

PI

PI

PI PI

PI PI PI

8'
'S

8'
'S

8'
'S

8'
'S

8''S S

PI

PI

IR

IR

IR
IR

IR
IR

IR
IR

IR

S

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

H 
Y D

H Y D

H 
Y D

W

W

8''W 8''W

8''W 8''W 8''W

8'
'W

S

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

16
''W

Y
D

H

Y
D

H

Y
D

H

SD

SD

SD

SD

S 8''S S

S

S

S

S

Y D

H

8''S

S
W

S

S

S

YDH

Y
D

H

3
4

5

6

8

3

2

3

4

5

2C

345619181715

13

12

11

10

9

7

4 3
2

2

2 3 4

1 2 3 5

7 8 9 10 11 6C

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

9C

1C

1C

4

1C

STORM DRAINAGE
SWALE #1

14

8

EXPLORER ST

LONE OAK ST.

R
ED

BU
D

 A
VE

ACADIA ST

IVORY LILAC ST

RAVENWOOD ST.

TIM
BERWOOD ST.

SUGAR MAPLE AVE.

SU
M

AC
 A

VE
.

C
R

YSTAL R
IVER

 AVE.

W. MEADOW CREEK WAY

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
AD

12.00'

14.0'

14.0'

25.5'

25.0'

6.00'

12.0'

12.0'

10.0'

12.0'

7

TP-4

TP-2

TP-3

TP-5

TP-9
TP-1

TP-8

TP-7

TP-6

5C

20

SEWER CLEAN OUT
FOR FUTURE CONNECTION

20.00'

12.00'

6

9

CONNECT TO EXISTING
SEWER INVERT

11.03'

50.0'

23.0'

8.0'
SIDEWALK25.0' 8.0' 9.0'

24.0' TRAFFIC BUFFER EASEMENT

15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1,
ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT, ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
2" PLANT MIX PAVEMENT
 ITEM 810.4.1.A.1
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

STANDARD 6" VERTICAL
CURB AND GUTTER,
ITEM 706.4.1.A.5

0 6030 180120

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 F
O

R
:

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C0.01

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R/W

SEW

W

SD

PI

IR

S

SD

LEGEND

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED EASEMENT

PROPOSED SEWER LINE

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN LINE

PROPOSED PRESSURE IRRIGATION LINE

PROPOSED GRAVITY IRRIGATION LINE

EX. FENCE LINE

PROPOSED SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

PROPOSED CATCH BASIN/AREA INLET

PROPOSED SAND AND GREASE TRAP

EXISTING POWER POLE

EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER

EXISTING WATER MAIN

EXISTING WATER VALVE

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT

EXISTING STREET SIGN

EXISTING SEWER MAIN

EXISTING EDGE OF GRAVEL

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

TEST PIT

STORM WATER FLOW ARROW

SEW

NOTES
1. ALL WATER MAINLINES ARE TO BE 8" IN DIAMETER

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL SEWER LINES ARE TO BE BE 8" IN DIAMETER
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. ALL STORM WATER DRAINAGE LINES ARE TO BE 12"
IN DIAMETER

4. PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION TO BE PROVIDED BY A
PROPOSED PUMP STATION LOCATED IN LOT 2
BLOCK 3.

5. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BY T-O
ENGINEERS (JANUARY 2021).

6. A BLANK CONDUIT SHALL BE ADDED TO JOINT
TRENCH FOR CITY REQUIRED FIBER OPTICS.

2578

2580

YDH

X X X

KEYNOTES:

CONNECT TO EXISTING SEWER FROM ESTATES
AT MEADOWPARK

CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER FROM ESTATES
AT MEADOWPARK

PROVIDE WATER/SEWER MAIN STUBS FOR
FUTURE EXTENSION

MAILBOX CLUSTER

1

2

3

22
"x

34
"

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

, S
UR

VE
YO

RS
 &

 P
LA

NN
ER

S

C
  2

02
1 T

-O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

  A
N

Y 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, R

EU
SE

 O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
 IT

S 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

IS
 S

TR

D
ES

IG
N

ED

D
R

AW
N

C
H

EC
KE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BO
R

D
ER

 S
IZ

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.T

O
-E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

C
O

M

H
:\2

10
03

6\
3_

AC
AD

D
W

G
\S

H
EE

TS
\P

R
EP

LA
T\

21
00

36
 -C

-P
P-

01
-U

TI
LI

TI
ES

.D
W

G
, 1

1/
23

/2
02

1

24
71

 S
. T

IT
AN

IU
M

 P
LA

C
E

M
ER

ID
IA

N
, I

D
AH

O
 8

36
42

PH
O

N
E:

 (2
08

) 3
23

-2
28

8

10 1/2
ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE
1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

BO
IS

E 
♦ 

C
O

D
Y 

♦ 
C

O
EU

R
 D

'A
LE

N
E 

♦ 
H

EB
ER

 C
IT

Y
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 ♦
 N

AM
PA

 ♦
 S

PO
KA

N
E

11/23/2021

P.
 L

U
C

IA

P.
 L

U
C

IA

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

D
. S

TE
R

LI
N

G

210036

W
IL

LO
W

 W
O

O
D

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

3

3

1

2

INSTALL CULVERT CROSSING

EXISTING IRRIGATION DITCH

TP-1

EXISTING IRRIGATION DITCH

EXISTING IRRIGATION
OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 20' IRRIGATION
EASEMENT

1C

1C

1C

16C

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR
WILLOW WOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISION

A PORTION OF LOT 2 OF SECTION 31
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN

CANYON  COUNTY, IDAHO
2021

4

CITY OF MIDDLETON
MEADOW CREEK WAY TYPICAL SECTION - 50' ROW

SCALE: NTS

CL PLRW

7

1

2

3

4

5

6



             
        

2 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Proposed Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 1 

 

 
After Recording, mail to 
Middleton City Administrator 
1103 W. Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between 
the CITY OF MIDDLETON, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (City); and 
Joseph L. Austin and Deborah Austin, husband and wife, referred to hereafter as 
Developer (Developer). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer owns approximately 21 acres of real property located 
at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R3757901 and R37579011, Middleton, Canyon 
County, Idaho, legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference (Property); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property (also known as Willow 
Wood Estates Subdivision) according to the Middleton City Code and the City’s public 
works standards at the time(s) the Property is improved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code §67-6511A, has the authority to 
annex and rezone the property and to enter into a development agreement for the 
purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development agreement to proceed in 
a specific area and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but 
for which all allowed uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant 
to the Idaho Code and Middleton City Code. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals 
above, which are incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 2 

 

performances herein bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of 
Idaho Code §67-6511A and Middleton City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 

ARTICLE II 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE  

 
 The City will adopt an ordinance to annex and rezone the Property from 
Canyon County Agricultural to City of Middleton R-3 (Single Family Residential). The 
Ordinance will become effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded 
according to law, all of which actions the City will perform at the city’s expense and 
with the Developer’s cooperation. 
 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
 3.1 Applications. Developer will develop the Property subject to the 
conditions and limitations set forth in this Development Agreement. Further, 
Developer shall submit such applications regarding preliminary plat and final plat 
reviews, and/ or any special use permits, if applicable, and any other applicable 
applications as may be required by the Middleton City Code, which shall comply with 
the Middleton City Code, as it exists at the time such applications are made except as 
otherwise provided within this Development Agreement. 
 

3.2  Concept Plan. The Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 
represents Developer’s current concept for completion of the project. Developer shall 
be bound by this Concept Plan and shall develop the project substantially consistent 
with the Concept Plan.  

 
3.3 Frontage Improvements. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 

fifty foot (50’) half-road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street per City 
standards and codes and dedicate the same to the City prior to approval of final plat for 
Phase 1. 
 

3.2 Proportionate Share Fees: Developer shall pay City required traffic 
proportionate share fees in the amount of ___________________________________ 
dollars ($___________) prior to final plat approval for Phase 1. Payment of the 
proportionate share fees will be a condition of approval for Phase 1 final plat. 

 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 3 

 

3.3 Final Plat Deadline & Termination of Agreement. Developer shall 
obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for Phase 1 within two years of the 
date the preliminary plat is approved. Upon written request prior to the expiration of 
said two year period, Developer may apply administratively with a written request 
for a one year extension to obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat.  
Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV, if Developer does not obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within two years of the date the 
preliminary plat is approved or within the time-period of a one year extension, then 
Developer will be in material breach of this Agreement.  Additionally, the preliminary 
plat shall become null and void. The City, after complying with the notice and hearing 
requirements contained in the Middleton City Code and Idaho State Code, may then 
choose to extend, modify, or terminate this Agreement. The City may initiate the 
foregoing proceedings and may do so at any time following a material breach hereof. 
Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the zoning that is in place at the time 
of the termination, and the zoning for the Property shall remain R-3. No delay in 
initiating proceedings to extend, modify, or terminate this Agreement following a 
material beach by Developer shall constitute a waiver of said breach. 

 
3.4 Two Year intervals for Final Plat.  After final plat approval for Phase 

1, Developer shall be required to obtain the City Engineer’s signature on each phase’s 
final plat within two years of final plat approval on the previous phase.  Upon written 
request prior to the expiration of said two-year period, Developer may apply 
administratively with a written request for a one year extension to obtain City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat under consideration.  If Developer does not 
timely apply for a one-year extension or does not subsequently obtain the Engineer’s 
signature on the final plat within the one year extension time period, then the 
preliminary plat for said phase and all subsequent phases shall become null and void, 
and Developer must resubmit the preliminary plat for said phases in order to 
continue to develop the Property. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 
 
 4.1 If the Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in 
this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may 
be modified or terminated by the Middleton City Council, after complying with the 
notice and hearing requirement contained in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code.   
  If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this 
Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this 
Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the amended 
terms. 
  Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived 
and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any subsequent 
breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 4 

 

 
 4.2 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the zoning should 
remain R-3, or as otherwise provided in the Idaho Code, then the Developer hereby 
consents to such reversion or other action and will cease uses not allowed or 
permitted in the R-3 zone. 
  
 4.3 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the 
specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be 
awarded damages for failure of performance of both, or may obtain rescission, 
disconnection, and damages for repudiation or material failure of performance. 
 
 4.4 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE.  Upon any failure of any party to 
this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming 
such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the 
alleged failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement may be 
found to have occurred if performance has commenced to the satisfaction of the 
complaining party with thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notice. 

 
ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting 
the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements 
between the parties respecting the Property. 
 
 5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
made only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 
 5.3 Any notice that a party may desire to give to another party must be in 
writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested, or by Federal Express or other 
reputable overnight delivery service.  Notice shall be given to the parties at the 
following addresses or such other address and to such other persons as the parties 
may designate after giving notice.  Any such notice shall be deemed given upon 
delivery if by personal delivery, upon deposit in the United States mail if sent by mail 
pursuant to the forgoing: 
 
 
    
   Middleton: City Clerk 
     City of Middleton 
     P.O. Box 487 
     Middleton, Idaho 83644 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 5 

 

 
    
 
   Developer: _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
 
      
 5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said 
failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of 
curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be 
reimbursed to the other party upon demand.  In the event a suit or action is filed by 
either party against the other to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party to such litigation agrees to pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred therein, including the same with 
respect to an appeal. 
 
 5.5 The Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed.  This 
Agreement shall become valid and binding only upon its approval by the City Council 
and execution of the Mayor and City Clerk.  After its execution, the Agreement shall 
be recorded in the office of the County Recorded at the expense of the City. 
 
 5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be 
a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for 
the benefit of the Property, adjacent property and other residential land near the 
Property. 
  This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and their 
respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors 
and assigns.  Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, 
then each owner of a legal lot shall only be responsible for duties and obligations or 
breaches as to their owners’ parcels or lots. 
  The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, 
without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee’s sale 
or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments and other obligations arising under 
this Agreement with respect only to such owner’s lot or parcel. 
 
 5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon 
County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the 
laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed.  Any action 
brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 
jurisdiction located in Canyon County, Idaho. 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 6 

 

 5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or 
the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid 
or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this 
Agreement. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to be 
executed, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2021 and effective upon annexation and 
rezoning of the Property. 
 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON           ATTEST 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________          By: _______________________________________ 
       Steven J. Rule, Mayor       Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
State of IDAHO  ) 
             ss. 
County of Canyon  ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this _________ day of ___________________, 2021, 
personally appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who declared that he is the Mayor of the City 
of Middleton, Idaho and signed this Development Agreement as Mayor of the City of 
Middleton.   
 
 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
 
 

[Signatures on following page] 
 
 



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 7 

 

 
 
 
 
JOSEPH L. AUSTIN 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
     
    
 
State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ___________________, 2021, personally 
appeared before me Joseph L. Austin, who declared that he signed this Development 
Agreement in the capacity of Developer and Owner of the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision. 
 
            
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
DEBORAH R. AUSTIN 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
     
 
 
State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ___________________, 2021, personally 
appeared before me Deborah R. Austin, who declared that she signed this Development 
Agreement in the capacity of Developer and Owner of the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision. 
 
  
            



Development Agreement – _________________ 
Page 8 

 

      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 



             
        

3 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Agency Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Carl Hayes
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: Willow Wood Estates Subdivision
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 2:48:42 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Standard piping requirements apply as this project borders the C-East 18.1-3.4 Lateral.
 
Thank you,
 
 
 

 

mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com



 
November 8, 2021 

 

City of Middleton, Idaho 

Planning & Zoning Department 

1103 West Main Street  

Middleton, ID 83644 

Attention:  Roberta Stewart, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

 

RE: Cemetery Road-Willow Wood Subdivision—Preliminary Plat 

 

Mrs. Stewart: 

 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 (CHD4) has reviewed the preliminary plat dated 7/30/21 for 

Willow Wood Estates Subdivision.  The development consists of approximately 21 acres with 63 

buildable lots.  The development is located on parcels R3757901000 and R3757901100.  The 

development is requesting annexation, preliminary plat, and R-3 zoning from Middleton City.  

The Subdivision is located on the east side of Cemetery Road approximately 2,770’ north of 

Willis Road 

 

CHD4 offers the following recommendations: 

 

General 

By agreement with the City, CHD4 maintains Cemetery Road 0.5 miles north of Willis Road to 

Purple Sage Road.  Under this agreement, CHD4 may provide comment on development or other 

permit activity, which may affect traffic operations or maintenance of Middleton Road.   

 

Cemetery Road 

At time of improvement drawing review the following shall be shown: 

 CHD4 policy requires a 5-year moratorium on road cuts in any newly rebuilt road.  

Cemetery Road was rebuilt in 2020.   

o New utilities are shown to extend 100’ north of the subdivision’s south property 

line in existing Cemetery Road.  

 Applicant shall remove and rebuild full width of road beginning 

approximately 25’ south of the quarter corner and extend north 

beyond the perpendicular sewer crossing and terminate at next 

available warm joint.  This includes any borrow ditches and road 

appurtenances. 

 If utility construction in Cemetery Road extends beyond depicted 

limits—Middleton City shall take over maintenance responsibilities 

of Cemetery Road. 

 

Please consider extending sewer east, via Meadow Creek Way, to prevent additional utility cuts 

on Cemetery.  Can this be addressed through improvement plans from Estates at West Highlands 

(see email dated 11/8/21)? 



Page 2 of 2 

CHD4 asks the City to consider the following: 

 Centerline is offset approximately 2.5’ west from section line.  Widen Cemetery Road 

from section line per Middleton typical section. 

 

Access to Cemetery to come by future Meadow Creek Way shown as Meadow Park Street on 

Willow Wood plan. 

 

Traffic Impact 

Traffic mitigation will be addressed through subdivision frontage improvements and impact fees. 

 

Please feel free to contact with any questions on this matter. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
Lenny Riccio, E.I.T. 

Assistant District Engineer 

Transportation Planner 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 

 



Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

This proposal is on the fringe of the City of Middleton surrounded by farmland and removed from employment 
centers. Cemetery Road is identified in the Middleton Connects 2015 City Vision Map as having a Public Use 
Pathway and Bike Lane in the future. The Picadilly Park Park and Ride is approximately is about 2 miles away. This 
stop is not currently served, but ValleyConnect 2.0 proposes future service at this location with an express route 
from Happy Day Transit Center to Saint Luke’s regional hospital in Meridian, via Hwy-44, with 30-minute 
frequencies. 
 

 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Willow Wood Estates    Agency: Middleton 

CIM Vision Category: Future Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 63   New jobs: 0   Exceeds CIM forecast: No 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 927 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 750 
Jobs within 1 mile: 70 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.1 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 1.1 miles 
Nearest public park: 1.3 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: Purple Sage Road 
Pedestrian level of stress: R 
Bicycle level of stress: R 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: 2.3 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.2 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


Fiscal Impact Analysis Supplemental for the 
Development Review Checklist

The purpose of the fiscal impact analysis is to better estimate expected revenues and costs to local 
governments as a result of new development so that the public, stakeholders, and the decision-
makers can better manage growth. Capital and operating expenditures are determined by various 
factors that determine service and infrastructure needs, including persons per household, student 
generation rates, lot sizes, street frontages, vehicle trip and trip adjustment factors, average trip 
lengths, construction values, income, discretionary spending, and employment densities.

The COMPASS Development Checklist considers the level of fiscal benefits, how many public agencies 
benefit or are burdened by additional growth, and how long the proposal will take to achieve a fiscal 
break-even point, if at all. More information about the COMPASS Fiscal Impact Tool is available at: 
www.compassidaho.org/prodserv/fiscalimpact.htm.

Overall Net Fiscal Impact

Net Fiscal Impact, by Agency

City

Highway District

Break Even:

County

School District



             
        

4 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

City Engineer & Planner Comments 





CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487, 1103 W. Main St., Middleton, ID  83644 

208-585-3133  Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletoncity.com    

www.middleton.id.gov 
 

 
 
 
October 4, 2021 
 
 

Planner Comments 
Willow Wood Estates Subdivision – Pre-Plat dated 7/29/2021 

 
 

1. Please send copy of the agreement showing you have right to control (or own) 9th Street 
Right of way, proving that you will be able to improve and dedicate the Right of Way 
upon completion of construction. 

2. Does the current annexation legal description and sketch include the 9th Street Right of 
Way?  How is that going to be handled? 

3. The Traffic Study indicates that this 63 lot subdivision has no material effect on any 
nearby intersections, removing the need to collect proportionate share dues.  We need 
to get Amy Woodruff’s opinion on that conclusion. 

4. Missing a landscape plan 
5. Need to show perimeter fence around entire subdivision. Either show it on the pre-plat or 

add it to the landscape plan. 
6. Change name of Redbud Street to Redbud Avenue since it is a north/south roadway. 
7. Add note to the “Notes” section stating that L16/B1 is a private drive.  Also note that it 

has a public easement applied to the entire drive.  Finally, put an additional call-out note 
regarding the easement next to the drive on the pre-plat. 

8. Block 1, Lots 7, 8 and 9 need widened to 75’ 
9. Block 1, Lot 4; Block 2, Lots 3 and 4; Block 3 Lots 6 & 7 need notations to show they are 

at least 75’ wide at the 25’ setback line. 
10. L7/B1 size needs to be increased to 8000. 
11. You are a little over the density allowed, but it is by just a hair so we’re inclined to 

overlook it.  But, you have multiple lots that don’t have enough frontage width or 
minimum size.  If you can’t get these deficient lots to meet the minimum code standards, 
then you may have to remove a lot from the plat to make more room.  It you can get all 
lots to meet minimum dimensional standards, then I don’t think the City will mind that 
you are a “touch” over the density allowed.  Up to you. 

12. I can’t find the following common lots on the plat:  L8/B3 and L13/B4.  Please remove 
notation and renumber lots or show me where they are. 

13. What is planned for the little landlocked parcel L2C/Block 2?  Why is that parcel there? 
14. Show mailbox clusters on the pre-plat 
15. You are overstating your open space.  When I count the 3 large common lots together, it 

is a little over an acre, which may get you to 5%.  One of the 3 common lots may not 
really be sufficient to deem “Open Space” in the spirit of the Code, but we can try.  We 
cannot include the landscape buffers and smaller endcap buffers in the open space 
count. They do not meet the spirit of the “Open Space” code.  If you add an amenity on 
one of the bigger common lots, that will help create the sense of meeting the 5% open 
space requirement.  A playground, or gathering structure, benches…etc., something to 



 

 

 

 

provide 5% gathering space for the residents.  Whatever you choose needs to be shown 
on the pre-plat.   

16. I can’t tell if you have the landscape berm required by MCC5-4-10-2 and MCC 5-4-10-6.  
If that common lot along Cemetery will serve as the required buffer, then put a little call-
out note showing that is has a landscape buffer easement on it. 

17. Will there be any phasing?  If so, please create a phasing page. 
18. Please change or add the following notes to the “Note” section: 

a. Change Note 1 to state “building setbacks and dimension standards shall be in 
accordance with the Middleton city Code at the time of building permit issuance.” 

b. All streets proposed in this subdivision are public streets and shall be constructed 
in accordance with Middleton standards for public streets 

c. Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the city of Middleton 
d. Sanitary sewer collection shall be provided by the City of Middleton 
e. Any re-subdivision of this plat shall comply with the applicable zoning regulations 

in effect at the time of the re-subdivision. 
f. All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All septic systems 

shall be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 
g. Sewer and Water capacity shall be reserved when City approves the construction 

drawings. 
h. All lots are hereby designated as having a permanent easement for public utilities 

and pedestrian walkways over the 10’ adjacent to any public right of way. This 
easement shall not preclude the construction of hard-surfaced driveways and 
walkways to each lot. 

i. All lots contain a 10’ wide easement adjacent to any rear lot line or subdivsion 
boundary for public utilities.  

j. All interior lot lines contain a 5’ wide easement, each side, for public and private 
utilities, drainage and irrigation facilities. 

19. Please type out a formal response to each comment explaining whether you agree to the 
change requests or why you disagree with the change request. 

 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton City Planner  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













Estimate
Date

12/10/2021

Estimate #

M2418
Estimate Prepared For:

MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
1103 W. MAIN ST
MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Customer Reference #

Total

                                   All Estimates are valid for a period of 30 days. 
After 30 days, please re-confirm as all pricing is subject to change. If any changes

are necessary, final figures will be available prior to the onset of signing. 
Please do not hesitate to contact us should you have any further needs.

ERS
Emergency Responder Services, Inc
1204 6th St North
Nampa, ID 83687

Please refer to your Estimate # when calling
your ERS Sales Representative. 

Your rep can be reached on location at
Ph: (208) 362-1741 or Fx: (208) 562-1318

To see more ways we can serve you, please
visit our website:

www.ERSINC-NW.COM

Questions?

Thank you for considering us!

THIS IS NOT A BILL.

Date:Signature: ______________

Item Description QtyRate Total

2016 CHEVY TAHOE K9 CONVERSION

CK0471TAH15-10 SETINA K9 ULTIMATE 2 PACKAGE K9 CAGE W/ 2
EXIT POINTS, PRISONER TRANSPORT AND FREE
STANDING WEAPON MOUNT. 2015-2020
CHEVROLET TAHOE

13,300.00 3,300.00

EK0689TAH00 SETINA MAXI THIS FAN, 10" (FAN ONLY) 1325.00 325.00
K9A13145 SETINA NO SPILL WATER BOWL 160.00 60.00
F3 RAY ALLEN F3 K-9 DEPLOYMENT AND HEAT

ALERT SYSTEM W/ PAGER
11,299.99 1,299.99

MISC PARTS & ... MISC PARTS & MATERIALS 175.00 75.00
SHIPPING SHIPPING AND HANDLING FEE 1525.00 525.00
LABOR LABOR/INSTALLATION

- TAKE OUT CURRENT PRISONER CAGE
- REMOVE ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND
EXTEND WIRES
- INSTALL K9 CAGE
- REINSTALL ELECTRONICS ON TO REAR OF K9
CAGE

4090.00 3,600.00

$9,184.99









 

 

RESOLUTION 462-21 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, 
DECLARING CERTAIN BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY AS OBSOLETE OR 
SURPLUS, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING SALE OR DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY. 
 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Middleton, Idaho (the “City”) has acquired certain business 
personal property to conduct a municipality in the public interest according to state law; and 
 

WHEREAS, items of the City’s business personal property listed on the attached Exhibit 
A have become worn out, obsolete or are no longer needed by the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is cumbersome to the City and wasteful to own and not use the items; and   
 

WHEREAS, the items are surplus and the City desires to dispose of them. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, as follows: 
 
Section 1:  The recitals are incorporated here as if restated in full. 
 
Section 2:  The items of business personal property on the attached Exhibit A are surplus with 
approximate fair-market values stated. 
 
Section 3:  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to sell the surplus property for 
approximate fair market value or, if unable to sell an item, donate it to a non-profit organization 
or otherwise dispose it. 
 
Section 4:   This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption. 

 
PASSED BY COUNCIL, CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO this 15th day of December, 2021 

 
      CITY OF MIDDLETON 
 
 

ATTEST:            
Steven J. Rule, Mayor 

 
 
      
Rhonda Carpenter,  Deputy City Clerk 
 



 

 

 
Exhibit A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



Item Description Condition Estimated Valve Photo Link #1 Photo Link # Notes

1

Plan Hold VIP 3000 Fair $75

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1I496-

bTXwkm_TyIOYuLz5z7fL8mMGAZg/view

?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cI1cMo

ffBtL3D0fAuViNSFghFd3eohgf/view?usp=

sharing
Auction

2

Hein-Werner  bumper 

jack
Unknown $30

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eYwlwg

0iP1F5Yt-

QTlRoA8mVZbOs177Q/view?usp=sharing Auction

3

Onan Generator Unknown $50
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1TOL3po

wCC9tMGizFPVqsf9q8aHpTEupK/view?u

sp=sharing Auction

4

monarch 2 inch pump Unknown $50
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ni1klzq

8EddyGZiAqQJzzn85pnjjfa5J/view?usp=s

haring

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1t8oBv7

LChXRUbblKO-

bXXPD5FgLhxL21/view?usp=sharing Auction

5

3” Teel self priming 

centrifugal pump
Unknown $50

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dHME8

D9gRQOCIG1Pi6QQzoXya_EqNL9T/view?

usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FmLa_T

ViKBOktXC3ZLlzE2kV-

by98ynT/view?usp=sharing Auction

6

3" ABS pump with 

electric motor
Unknown $100

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bh572p

BbekwLnZVjihCoO5wwfoAp1Kr4/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/14WmEC

hcuas27OHPOy0hatcvx9BHNali-

/view?usp=sharing Auction

7

hydraulic press Fair $100
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1O-

obmG_LUdXk5jiK9Q-

eH9rSRY2ih7_b/view?usp=sharing Auction

8

United Parts Washer Non funtional $50
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KfXPA6

uFYOVcI-

8_at_QrZu4s_t7EBeK/view?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ud5D8

Emsl5O-

9vXPmDORWUkbD0EDPfyb/view?usp=sh

aring Auction

9

Case  Virbomax jumping 

jack  tamper pic 1
Non funtional $50

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ljVkl3i6

hYWL-

NaLX4GwZllzAN3rkvrS/view?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BzsWZP

Y-

K79xdA_nwGnXzYiOHRiycpyw/view?usp

=sharing Auction

10

Picnic Tables Need repair $25
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10jdy8F5

L3lEiCXTzYEQW3fpjoMWtBBZE/view?usp

=sharing Auction

11

Jumping Jack Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11Jbofkz

xjx8rdxzRF4EDtV8i7Km9sBPs/view?usp=s

haring

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1csrw-

McWcZvv0DrVa_ZrwDDptx0YP6sm/view

?usp=sharing Auction

12

1990 Volvo dump truck Need repair $7,500
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HH2zM

XV99dQA29j3dM3tfM2gu7xpe3JI/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/118RQ2

mEyCo2tUiP0YAIflfuaWbCVvP8l/view?us

p=sharing

AUCTION: Steering arms need to be replaced must be 

towed. Must purchase plow, sander, and truck all 

together. 483,253 Miles, 25,526 Hrs



13

Mid-States Farm King 

Heater
Non funtional $0

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1TdTQPJ

_tVyMx754X_BsA23b0L-

gmi3wS/view?usp=sharing SCRAP

14

Echo Gas Blower Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CtQCnh

Xxpjz8UjcWsYi-

mqv7SXwJweYj/view?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-

cpkDapRyB7EgX87f5KW4vDMkeQoJkvJ/v

iew?usp=sharing SCRAP

15

Stihl HS 80 Hedge 

Trimmer
Non funtional $0

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cUBEcC

8zglaIsO5TpY5HrJXbaX_BlA-

D/view?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1LkRm1

p_yYu1cpSzXBW8zZa-

DiZVrBREE/view?usp=sharing SCRAP

16

leaf blower Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Kb4wD

6KOyFwGOQgpIFMACSr0ati4x268/view?

usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tDUAJ2

LktKcIJldR1e8iA6xHDMfEAlDQ/view?usp

=sharing SCRAP

17

chain saw Stihl 009L Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1svMkjP

GbFq0ywZp1JngbnNvwdn0p3vtF/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gE2P55

6DDbF8agCcvXaqIepOqQZF7tyC/view?us

p=sharing SCRAP

18

chain saw Stihl 032 AV Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FziTf_0

Oey0KFqCxcOAdsPwAVA4jLNpM/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YPkwZK

RX8wfT2ZqD8l-

5P4U1HLHksZJt/view?usp=sharing SCRAP

19

leaf blower WE Pic Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tDUAJ2

LktKcIJldR1e8iA6xHDMfEAlDQ/view?usp

=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eiHx0xi

0UeKgOwjezhHamuIMr3MEn7kn/view?u

sp=sharing SCRAP

20

chain saw Stihl MS 180C 

pic
Non funtional $0

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1QboP-

yCMlB23OBKvjWIlQNu355yKZAvE/view?

usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HQQv8

5T_8KpYUmGjhtFyunELcNcCuGCg/view?

usp=sharing SCRAP

21

cut off saw Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17LbnUq

sq8GLQeJMrbThwY4psY4UOLrhc/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/18KNQr

VqCnBiWBkF-ftD-

ZJ5sCuUMaTJW/view?usp=sharing SCRAP

22

weed eater Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YBIOPtS

eMeoveZLV1xxiCo0PJtu2dS0_/view?usp=

sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ny6h5_

pF1NRv8ctjUGDx_WZVCQtLltA5/view?us

p=sharing SCRAP

23

drip lines Non funtional $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17xETTQ

3Rsf17RLVXghiEWeQOZcFoMCsr/view?u

sp=sharing SCRAP

24

insulated pipe Garbage $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JEfrjG4

kP_7AfxwBNlfiJKgp66EYCh7H/view?usp=

sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yS6dUV

5ktbm8PHt2zH3Ve-

SlQtX8e30H/view?usp=sharing SCRAP

25

playground equipment Need repair $0
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1x5fDOP

1CA6ZXA36UJJhPWaosAQa4avhd/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1GyWQ

O_2u-

IDFc92s0lMvYnQcNBBTFa4X/view?usp=s

haring Tranfer of Liability/Indemnification



26

hawk light Fair
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18_0K6L

vX3XqM6dx4LkwfhWcKH3_1h3qO/view?

usp=sharing Homedale purchased. Middleton Storing, per Jim. 

27 Xerox WorkCenter 7120

Unknown $500
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1e3hDug

DXOCwU4tPACFCYD4bkYFW5eTb9/view

?usp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/14H5qiiR

FDzVvYUSxDDsNxtGCCtEHMcS8/view?us

p=sharing Aution. Worked at last use. 

28 Fabric 1

40 plus yards new/ 10 

plus yars fair
$75

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jSpuf9B

O39zTgRPYb9HgdNu_mObtCR1k/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sdZV71

4li-

W5W6Q9YDV8e6rHTGDHJVSY/view?usp

=sharing Aution. Worked at last use. 

29 Fabric 2

10 plus yards fair $15
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n5JjAKf

0RhNmXIR48UFvTPwtGZRskCzQ/view?us

p=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1puU2Fn

SC9u3cbiRR2dbqp3PucAULjz-

1/view?usp=sharing Aution. Worked at last use. 

30

Wood Table 42" wide x 

96" long x 29" Tall

Fair $50
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OT4or6

c20AHnBHquXQE5hGJxjf5D9ZoA/view?u

sp=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sB33bq

YP4_bSD28cdc2yWBABtRN1IgWU/view?

usp=sharing Auction

31

72 used dual port Sensus 

M520M water meter 

radios 

Used $100
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17T7i3_

W_VS__TUYrFeQq3B7n-

0SZbtDK/view?usp=sharing Auction

32

29 used single port 

Sensus M520M water 

meter radios

Used $50
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16GM1Ik

_nK0KBbYFaSwXpcPC3x5KUwbt-

/view?usp=sharing Auction

33

186 dual Port M520M 

Sensus radios

New $200
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xv4A7q

v51TXsP_OF6VsksL18Zi-

5RSQM/view?usp=sharing Auction

34

29 single port M520M 

Sensus radios

New $100

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cY6Xg

MYh-

HWAwwyWmYYM6nnbmyc03fnE/view?

usp=sharing Auction

35

Police Dept. 2011 Dodge 

Charger

Used $2,000
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FDIeBr

DdK_y4eIedf4KXvyZLyLhqmklY/view?usp

=sharing

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CwRTiiz

55TWZ_FBXshPu0fDSTbDH4Dz1/view?us

p=sharing Auction. As is. 



1.  

2.  

3.  

 

 



4.  

5.  



6.  

7.  



8.  

9.  



10.  

11.   



12.

 



13.  

14.  

15.  



16.  

17.  

18.  



19.  

20.  

21.  



22.  

23.  



24.

 



25.

 



26.  

27.  



28.  

29.  



30.  

31.  

32.  



33.  

34.  



35.  





 

 
 

 
City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
Regularly Scheduled Meetings in 2022 

 
 

All meetings are at 1103 W Main Street,  Middleton, Idaho unless otherwise advised. 
Please contact the City Clerk to arrange for language or access assistance. 

 
City Council meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  

Planning and Zoning meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  
 

 
2022 

Months City Council Planning & Zoning 
January 5th , 19th  10th 
February 2nd , 16th  14th 
March 2nd , 16th 14th  
April 6th , 20th    11th  
May 4th , 18th  9th  
June 1st , 15th  13th  
July 6th , 20th    11th 
August 3rd , 17th  8th  
September 7th , 21st  12th  
October 5th , 19th    17th  3RD  Monday 
November 2nd , 16th  14th  
December 7th , 21st   12th  

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487, 1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

208-585-3133  Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us    

www.middleton.id.gov 


	00) CC Minutes 12-01-2021.pdf
	Willow Wood CC Staff Report.pdf
	Willow Wood Estates Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Hearing Date: December 1, 2021
	B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 62 buildable lots and 10 common lots on 21 acres of vacant land located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcels Nos. R37579011 and R3757901).  Amenities include two large common lots with greenspace, tot lo...
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has three applications: (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 zoning, (2) preliminary plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently located in the County and zoned Agricultural.  The property to the east and south is within City limits and zoned R-3. The property on the north and west is County property and zoned A...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately west and south of the project and easily accessible to the project.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	Access to the subdivision is via Meadow Park Street and Explorer Street that connects to The Crossing at Meadow Parks.
	As required by City Code, Developer will improve, at its own cost, the ½ road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street. Although Developer at one time owned the property fronting Meadow Park, it does not currently own that frontage property.  ...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study which is currently being updated. It will show percentage of impacts this subdivision will have on surrounding intersections, and Developer will be required to pay for those impacts via a proportionate share traffic...
	I. Middleton Rural Fire District:  The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire District. The Fire District is backed up with review of Middleton, Canyon County and Star preliminary plats and has not had a chance to issue comments on this appli...
	City Council can still approve the preliminary plat, but it is critical that compliance with Middleton Fire District comments be made a condition of approval.  Once that is done, then City Engineer will work with Developer and the Fire District to mak...
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 21 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton and zoned R-3, which permits three single family homes per gross acre.
	There are three requirements for annexation approval: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, (3) the annexation is in the best interest of the City and not adverse to the public h...
	As to a zone change request, the Council must make two findings before approving such a request: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation requirements.  (1) The property is contiguous; (2) sewer and water are available as shown above, and (3) the City will benefit from the housing provided and street improve...
	As to the zone change, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver services. And, as will be shown in more detail in section M below, Planning Staff finds that the rezone is in harmony with the City’s C...
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows two phases for development, and it complies with all Middleton codes and standards. The only exception from code is applicant’s request to lower the code required turning radius of 125’ to 90...
	[A copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code except for the waiver noted above.
	Planning Staff further finds that the preliminary plat is not materially detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare as noted directly above in the section on Annexation/Rezone. Additionally, the preliminary plat is in harmony with the Middle...
	L. Development Agreement:  Annexation and rezone requests generally require a Development Agreement (“DA”).  Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for the DA, and have merely added six new provisions:
	a. A concept plan shall be attached to the Development Agreement, and Developer shall construct the project “substantially consistent” with the concept plan.
	b. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 50’ half-road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City prior to approval of final plat for phase 1.
	c. Developer shall pay additional pro-rata or proportionate share fees for all traffic impacts and intersection controls affected by the subdivision prior to final plat approval for phase 1.
	d. All construction shall be in compliance with R-3 zoning.
	e. If Developer does not bring phase 1 to final plat within 2 years of preliminary plat approval (or 3 years with a 1 year extension request), then the Developer will be in breach of contract, and City will have the option of terminating the Developme...
	f. After final plat approval for Phase 1, Developer will obtain final plat approval for each successive phase within 2 years (or 3 years with a 1 year extension) of the final plat approval for the previous phase.
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated “Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the site.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, quality lots for residential use increas...
	c. Goals 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: Comments from Black Canyon Irrigation District were received on November 2, 2021 and November 19, 2021.  Black Canyon merely reminded applicant of piping requirements. Comments from COMPASS were received on November 5th. The...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:
	Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on March 16, 2021. Applicants are Joseph Austin (Owner) and David Sterling/T-O Engineering. 2471 S. Titanium, Meridian ID 83642.  (208) 323-2288.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     11/14/2021
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 300’    11/12/2021
	Circulation to Agencies     11/10/2021
	Sign Posting property     11/12/2021
	Neighborhood Meeting     02/17/2021
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, an Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-13...
	T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council is considering three applications for (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision and order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of la...
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and agrees with any of the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Council should mak...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to hear these applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho ...
	If the Council is inclined to approve the three applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions:
	1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. Owner/Developer shall construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City of Middleton prior to approval of final plat for phase 1.
	3. Owner/Developer to update their initial Traffic Impact Study and pay all City required proportionate share traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 1.
	4. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	5. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	6. Tot Lot located on Lot 1C, Block 3 to include seating area/benches.
	7. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Commission recommends denial of the preliminary plat application, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Commission must state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planner, Roberta Stewart    Dated: 11/24/2021


	Willow Wood  FCO - City Council.pdf
	In the Matter of the Request of Joseph Austin and David Sterling/T-O Engineers for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R37579011...
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021 (Exhibit “A”).
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the public hearing date of December 1, 2021 (Exhibit “A”).
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, and Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13; Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC; and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, ...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing were given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 ...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	7. That these approvals are subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached Staff Report for the hearing date of December 1, 2021, which report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, except Applica...
	C. Decision and Order:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that:
	1. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Annexation and Rezone with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021...
	2. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for Development Agreement with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021...
	3. The application of Joseph Austin & David Sterling/T-O Engineering for preliminary plat with respect to the Willow Wood Estates Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the December 1, 2021, pub...


	Proposed FCO Willow Wood - CC.pdf
	Willow Wood Estates Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Hearing Date: December 1, 2021
	B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 62 buildable lots and 10 common lots on 21 acres of vacant land located at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcels Nos. R37579011 and R3757901).  Amenities include two large common lots with greenspace, tot lo...
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has three applications: (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 zoning, (2) preliminary plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently located in the County and zoned Agricultural.  The property to the east and south is within City limits and zoned R-3. The property on the north and west is County property and zoned A...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately west and south of the project and easily accessible to the project.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	Access to the subdivision is via Meadow Park Street and Explorer Street that connects to The Crossing at Meadow Parks.
	As required by City Code, Developer will improve, at its own cost, the ½ road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street. Although Developer at one time owned the property fronting Meadow Park, it does not currently own that frontage property.  ...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study which is currently being updated. It will show percentage of impacts this subdivision will have on surrounding intersections, and Developer will be required to pay for those impacts via a proportionate share traffic...
	I. Middleton Rural Fire District:  The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire District. The Fire District is backed up with review of Middleton, Canyon County and Star preliminary plats and has not had a chance to issue comments on this appli...
	City Council can still approve the preliminary plat, but it is critical that compliance with Middleton Fire District comments be made a condition of approval.  Once that is done, then City Engineer will work with Developer and the Fire District to mak...
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 21 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton and zoned R-3, which permits three single family homes per gross acre.
	There are three requirements for annexation approval: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, (3) the annexation is in the best interest of the City and not adverse to the public h...
	As to a zone change request, the Council must make two findings before approving such a request: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation requirements.  (1) The property is contiguous; (2) sewer and water are available as shown above, and (3) the City will benefit from the housing provided and street improve...
	As to the zone change, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver services. And, as will be shown in more detail in section M below, Planning Staff finds that the rezone is in harmony with the City’s C...
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows two phases for development, and it complies with all Middleton codes and standards. The only exception from code is applicant’s request to lower the code required turning radius of 125’ to 90...
	[A copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code except for the waiver noted above.
	Planning Staff further finds that the preliminary plat is not materially detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare as noted directly above in the section on Annexation/Rezone. Additionally, the preliminary plat is in harmony with the Middle...
	L. Development Agreement:  Annexation and rezone requests generally require a Development Agreement (“DA”).  Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for the DA, and have merely added six new provisions:
	a. A concept plan shall be attached to the Development Agreement, and Developer shall construct the project “substantially consistent” with the concept plan.
	b. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 50’ half-road portions of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City prior to approval of final plat for phase 1.
	c. Developer shall pay additional pro-rata or proportionate share fees for all traffic impacts and intersection controls affected by the subdivision prior to final plat approval for phase 1.
	d. All construction shall be in compliance with R-3 zoning.
	e. If Developer does not bring phase 1 to final plat within 2 years of preliminary plat approval (or 3 years with a 1 year extension request), then the Developer will be in breach of contract, and City will have the option of terminating the Developme...
	f. After final plat approval for Phase 1, Developer will obtain final plat approval for each successive phase within 2 years (or 3 years with a 1 year extension) of the final plat approval for the previous phase.
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated “Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the site.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, quality lots for residential use increas...
	c. Goals 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: Comments from Black Canyon Irrigation District were received on November 2, 2021 and November 19, 2021.  Black Canyon merely reminded applicant of piping requirements. Comments from COMPASS were received on November 5th. The...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:
	Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on March 16, 2021. Applicants are Joseph Austin (Owner) and David Sterling/T-O Engineering. 2471 S. Titanium, Meridian ID 83642.  (208) 323-2288.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     11/14/2021
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 300’    11/12/2021
	Circulation to Agencies     11/10/2021
	Sign Posting property     11/12/2021
	Neighborhood Meeting     02/17/2021
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, an Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, 50-1301 through 50-13...
	T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council is considering three applications for (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision and order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of la...
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and agrees with any of the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Council should mak...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to hear these applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho ...
	If the Council is inclined to approve the three applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions:
	1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. Owner/Developer shall construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street and dedicate the same to the City of Middleton prior to approval of final plat for phase 1.
	3. Owner/Developer to update their initial Traffic Impact Study and pay all City required proportionate share traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 1.
	4. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	5. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	6. Tot Lot located on Lot 1C, Block 3 to include seating area/benches.
	7. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Commission recommends denial of the preliminary plat application, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Commission must state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planner, Roberta Stewart    Dated: 11/24/2021

	Blank Page


	Image7_af_image: 
	Image8_af_image: 
	Image9_af_image: 
	Image10_af_image: 
	Text6: 1 Year


